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DEPUTY PRIME MINISTER AND MINISTER OF COMMERCE
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In 2022, the government and private sectors joined forces to drive the Thai economy
forward powerfully. Most countries eased their COVID-19 restrictions, leading international
trade to almost return to normal. In line with the government’s administrative policy, the
Ministry of Commerce undertook concrete actions to manage domestic and international
economic concerns, ensuring sustainable growth for the trade economy as it transitioned
into a modern era. These efforts included enhancing the trade capabilities of manufacturers
and entrepreneurs and promoting economic partnerships for regional development.

The International Institute for Trade and Development (Public Organization), known
as ITD, is a public organization operating under the supervision of the Ministry of Commerce.
Established in 2001 following a cooperative agreement between the Thai government and
the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD), its primary function
is to conduct research and studies to foster trade and development within the Asian region.
Currently, ITD’s mission includes building the capacities of developing countries in Asia to
jointly formulate economic policies and legal measures. To align with globalization trends,
it offers training programs and research initiatives in trade and development for personnel
across the Asian region. Furthermore, ITD supports cooperation and economic integration
at the regional level through the exchange of experiences and knowledge. It also serves as
a center for organizing training and capacity-building activities in trade and development,
working in collaboration with UNCTAD and other relevant organizations.

The roles and responsibilities of ITD are crucial in enhancing the potential of Thai
entrepreneurs to compete effectively in the global trade arena. This can be achieved through
proficient management, applying technology and innovation in product development to meet
consumer needs, and utilizing Thailand’s Soft Power to create value-added products and
services. Moreover, a comprehensive knowledge and understanding of international trade
and investment rules, especially those related to the environment, labor standards, and
hygiene measures, is essential. Establishing trustworthy alliances and trade partnerships
within the region is also crucial. These factors will increase the demand for and acceptance
of Thai products in the global market, ultimately leading to the sustainable growth of the
Thai economy.

In 2022, ITD significantly promoted and supported the Ministry of Commerce’s
policies through strengthening the capabilities of entrepreneurs operating in the subregion,
especially in Cambodia, Lao PDR, Myanmar, and Vietnam (CLMV) while promoting the
competitiveness of SMEs in the era of digital trade. Furthermore, ITD facilitated the
advancement of digital trade systems between Thailand and the CLMV countries and aided
SMEs in understanding and effectively leveraging the Regional Comprehensive Economic
Partnership (RCEP). Additionally, it played a role in the professional development of public
and private sector personnel involved in trade, investment, and international cooperation,
ensuring that professionals were equipped with comprehensive knowledge and modern
insights on effective trade and development.

On this occasion, I would like to express my gratitude to the Board of Directors,
executives, and all staff of ITD for their dedication and cooperation in working to the best
of their abilities, resulting in evident achievements. I extend my best wishes to ITD for
continued success in its efforts to achieve the set goals, with a commitment to service,
elevating the organization by embracing digital technology, and promoting good
governance for the country’s best interest.

Mr. Jurin Laksanawisit
Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of Commerce




MESSAGE FROM

THE DEPUTY MINISTER OF COMMERCE

ansSYNUASEIYINNISASINSIVWIEUBE

nsAsErinUsemadiunuinddgrensadwsglaliaulvennngu WANWATNS KUsznaunis
i'azuwqanmﬂuamuﬂiWﬂaumsn’lﬂm'swamLLanﬂUim's 'i'lsfl,m'mm'imaaﬂaumLLavusmwuunau
amsaswsw"lﬁlwmammﬁm sammaswsw"léﬁ”luLmiﬁmaLwaUs“Is%uﬂﬂunﬂswmuwﬂsvmeﬂuwma
16 Tud w.@. 2565 LLSJNaﬂ’iuVI‘U‘\]']ﬂﬂ']’i'iuU’]ﬂ‘UE]\‘lIﬂ’m 191ﬂaﬂmmsuusam weilAswgnalandandenu
HANTENUIMAIATINTATE-gLATY 'mmwf:flvaLﬂﬂmquamsmuLWﬂuUswLwﬂwmmu,m FINNUAANITUUS
mmjmauiunm%ﬂnﬁmﬁaa wﬂﬁiaﬂaaﬁlumamum'}ﬁluLLuuau

UswtwﬂvlmamaammLuuawﬁmamwasnLwa‘ani“ﬂ*um'lummsaﬂﬁmq‘ﬁu‘uaaLﬂswﬁﬁaﬂm 15
aswmmwuLLﬁuﬂmmLﬂiwﬁﬂ%ﬁuiﬂﬂLLa'vm'imsnsJTaﬂ’lavmﬂ']smam‘lmmmwmsnmavwﬂivﬂaumi
N158MUNLANNALAINAIAFIND i’JJJVNﬂ’]iWGMUWLwaﬁiﬁx‘iﬂmﬂ’]LLauﬂJaﬂ’]LW&ﬂMﬂuﬂﬂﬂﬂ‘mﬂﬂLﬂ‘lﬂﬂﬁﬂ’]ﬂ
lan ﬁ]\iﬁJﬂ'J']llﬁ]']L‘UuLLau’ﬁ’]ﬂZUE]EJNEJ\WIE]ﬂTSWGNu’]U’iuL‘VIPI

wuummsumﬁimuuawmEJal'1nsaamaﬂsﬁuumsLLausﬁuummmsﬂsmstzwu&ﬂvamnumLLa -
MsRfiuYasaaTUsEMANIUSTEIMARENISALAENITWAILA (B98Msamw) e aan. wulduou
nungulauieli aan. Jaduniswauidneninvesgusznaunisauianaisiazyuingaulilidnanin
mmsnwamaumLLaq:u'imsmauaumm'1ummm's'*ummmm"l,ﬂamwﬂ'suawﬁmw ansadnnalulad
mmawmuauamﬂsuﬂswaﬁ‘ﬁlmamammuﬁu swmmu'lia‘iﬂnliﬂ&l‘uumﬂm'mmnaamimLasl:wa
asm‘lLmumamamiﬂﬂummmmwi"mmvl,ﬂLwamﬂamamnﬂﬁWumﬁuaammwawﬂ‘[mﬂ 19 wazuoy
el aAn. mLuum{lﬁmmmﬂwﬂswnaumﬂmLwamSUsumsus“mamﬂmsmﬂﬂﬂjmmmsm
LﬂEJ’NJENﬂ‘Uﬁ\‘lLL’Jﬂa’e)‘NLLauﬁ’i’iﬁJu’m‘U’]a?JENUSuWIFIWGN‘L!']LLa’J

T8 .. 2565 daw. finanisafiunuiinevaussuleuisvesnsensrandivd i didusened wanns
JARNBUTNLAZAUATIITLAIUNITAILATNITHAUY N1satuayuANTINTasEnindsemnalagnIsuan
Lﬂasuﬂs“aumsmua“mwm AaNIsUVRY AAN. umumwmaiaﬂ'mvmn'ﬁm atiuayuyusznauns
VlmslmvmmﬂmaﬂsumdﬂaLQW']JIuUSUmmwauum sqummmmaswmmmmwuﬂml,nwﬂswnaumi
ny ann. 191?1?’119‘1'3‘{]8LLﬂ‘”Lﬁi&lﬁiNﬂ’N&liLﬂ‘c‘l')ﬂUﬁﬂﬂuﬂ’limﬂﬂiﬂ’ﬁ“‘WJ'}\‘lﬂﬁ“LVIFI ANUNINTNISNIAG
fiTlin® uaznswauINSEsEUURSasE s neRuUsEmAieuthy nsduasudnenin MSMEs
Thadran3eviegusznaugsia aan. lasiuiledussAnsseaulandnianssudvinis laglddnauduuun
UINYIATINAUNUSEYNanUsEu11idnIen1sAazn1siaiu (UNCTAD) #5889A6R 1589518974015
awmulan U a.a. 2022

NAUYDVDUAMAENTITUNTT ASHUINNT LLaum‘wmm AAN. mnmum"lmmnuaswwaqqftﬂuﬂ .6
2565 LLau‘Vi'J\‘lL‘lJ‘IJ’éJEﬂQEJ\TﬂUﬂ’"IﬁVﬂQﬂLﬁ,u‘JuEJuﬁ@iﬂﬂﬁlaﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂ?’]&luﬂ&lu fila uﬂ'laan'muaﬂamwmm
WDuiasddelumssiuiniuiasegionisavessemaliiule Lmauwsausmsummﬂaauuﬂamn
1 LLa"mamiwmmmwﬁlus"ﬂvmama"l,ﬂ

S

(u’m?ﬁimé vaelng)
STUURTTIBIINITNTENTIWIVE




International trade plays a crucial role in generating income for all Thai people,
including farmers, entrepreneurs, and employees in the manufacturing and service sectors.
Income from exports of goods and services circulates, generating revenue for various business
fields and providing income for the government to benefit the country’s development in
multiple dimensions. In 2022, even though the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic have
lessened, the global economy continues to grapple with the effects of the Russia-Ukraine
war. This conflict has led to inflation in developed countries and a pronounced polarization
in global geopolitics, fostering uncertainty worldwide.

Thailand must accelerate the implementation of proactive strategies to enhance the
competitiveness of its economy, strengthen the local economy, expand market opportunities
for farmers and entrepreneurs, facilitate the business sector, and support development to
create and add value to Thai products, enabling them to stand out in the global market.
Therefore, these strategies are both necessary and extremely important for the country’s
development.

I am delighted to have been appointed by the Deputy Prime Minister and Minister
of Commerce to oversee the International Institute for Trade and Development
(Public Organization) or ITD. I have directed ITD to focus on developing the potential of small
and medium enterprises, enabling them to produce goods and services that effectively meet
market demands, apply modern digital technology appropriately, and leverage free trade
agreements to gain trade advantages in international markets while seizing opportunities from
the post-COVID-19 market recovery. Additionally, I have assigned ITD to concentrate on
educating Thai entrepreneurs for long-term adaptation to enforcement measures related to
the environment and good governance in developed countries.

In 2022, ITD effectively executed the policies set by the Ministry of Commerce. This
involved organizing training, conducting research on trade and development, and promoting
international cooperation through exchanging experiences and knowledge. These projects
aimed to expand trade opportunities, enable Thai entrepreneurs to penetrate foreign markets,
particularly in neighboring countries, and enhance their competencies. ITD has studied
international trade scenarios and deepened its understanding of non-tariff trade measures,
the evolution of digital trade between Thailand and its neighboring countries, and the
empowerment of MSMEs to establish a network of entrepreneurs. Reflecting its commitment
to academic excellence, ITD has collaborated with world-class organizations to organize
academic activities. A notable example is the international seminar it co-hosted with the
United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD) on the World Investment
Report 2022.

I would like to express my gratitude to the Board of Directors, executives, and all staff
of ITD for working together to achieve results in the year 2022. I look forward to the next
phase of work, which requires commitment, determination, and firm physical and mental
strength, to serve as a vital force in developing the country’s trade and economy to grow
and adapt to changes in every dimension, ultimately aiming for long-term sustainable
development.

Mr. Sinit Lertkrai
Deputy Minister of Commerce
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Thailand has established a vision under its 20-year National Strategy (2017-2036)
to become “a stable, prosperous, and sustainable developed country, in line with the
philosophy of the sufficiency economy.” This vision aims to foster the happiness of the Thai
people, respond to the achievement of national interests, and create a stable society with
equality and justice, thereby enhancing the country’s ability to compete in the global
economy. To realize this developmental vision, the government has outlined a framework
focusing on six significant aspects: security, competitiveness, the development and
empowerment of people, the creation of equitable opportunities and social justice,
environmentally-friendly growth to improve the quality of life, and the balancing and
enhancement of public sector management.

Driving the country’s development towards the objectives of the national strategy
amid the changing global economy and geopolitics, as well as the rapid evolution of
technology and innovation, requires all sectors involved in the development process to have
access to accurate, up-to-date, and high-quality information and knowledge. These sectors
should also continually enhance their knowledge base and foster a visionary perspective to
stay relevant. In addition, government agencies and the private sector should consider these
perspectives and policy recommendations to help refine, improve, and develop their project
plans, thereby maximizing their chances of success.

The International Institute for Trade and Development (Public Organization) is the
only organization worldwide established through an agreement between the Thai
government and the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD). ITD
plays a pivotal role in research and in enhancing the capabilities of personnel from the public
and private sectors across Asia. Its mission is to provide knowledge and foster effective
performance within a globalized environment that promotes international trade liberalization
and investment. The ultimate goal is to deliver mutual benefits for developed and
developing nations, targeting sustainable economic, social, and environmental growth. This
goal aligns with the development direction set in Thailand’s 20-year National Strategy.

In 2022, ITD implemented plans and projects to enhance the knowledge of
government officials and entrepreneurs in Thailand and abroad. These efforts were
accomplished in collaboration with departments under the Ministry of Commerce, the
Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, universities, and the private sector. Additionally,
ITD worked with global organizations, such as the World Trade Organization (WTO), the
United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UNESCAP), and
UNCTAD to tap into cutting-edge knowledge. By hosting conferences, seminars and
spearheading research initiatives, ITD provided new insights into adapting to global
changes in technology, society, culture, and geopolitics and formulating new international
agreements.

As the Chairman of the Board, I would like to express my sincere appreciation to all
departments, organizations, and networks within ITD for their collaborative efforts in
making our operations in 2022 successful. I would also like to thank our Institute’s Board
members, management team, and all staff for their relentless dedication, determination,
and commitment to carrying out ITD’s mission. May you continue to succeed in your
objectives and experience further advancement in your endeavors.

Professor Somkit Lertpaithoon
Chairman of ITD Board of Directors
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In 2022, the International Institute for Trade and Development (Public Organization),
or ITD, a public organization supervised by the Ministry of Commerce, entered its 21st year.
This marked a significant beginning for the next operational phase of ITD. ITD remains
committed to delivering research findings and providing academic services in trade and
development to public officials, entrepreneurs, the education sector, and the general
public. With a firm commitment to its established vision and mission, ITD serves as a
knowledge management hub in trade, facilitating the development of Thai SMEs at the
ASEAN level. Applying knowledge into practice aims to bolster competitiveness, enhance
personnel capabilities, foster close collaboration with network partners, and pursue
partnerships with other organizations. This collaborative work drives towards the Sustainable
Development Goals while also elevating the organization through utilizing digital technology
and promoting good governance.

ITD has successfully advanced policies encouraging growth and alleviating SMEs’
constraints and trade barriers. This has been accomplished by delivering research findings
and policy suggestions to the Ministry of Commerce. Key research areas include “Assessment
of Non-Tariff Measures (NTMs) and their Impacts on International Trade and Competitiveness
of Thailand and CLMV countries” and “Development of Digital Trade between Thailand and
CLMV countries.” Additionally, ITD has conducted various brainstorming sessions to examine
relevant issues and convert them into policy proposals. These include meetings, conferences,
and seminars, such as “Improving Thai Labor Productivity in the Nong Khai Special Economic
Zone,” held on January 29, 2022, and “Strategizing Thai Trade with the China-Thailand
Railway: Opportunities, Obstacles, and Challenges,” conducted on March 30, 2022. The
latter meeting aimed to foster dialogue about the potential challenges and opportunities in
importing and exporting goods and services via the Thailand-Lao PDR-China Railway.
Moreover, on May 30, 2022, ITD hosted a seminar entitled “ITD Launch of Idea Papers 2022:
Strategies on Trade and Thai Labor through the China-Thailand Railway.” The objective was
to provide a platform for discussing Thai labor and trade in the context of the Thailand-Lao
PDR-China trade route.




ITD has collaborated with international organizations, including organizing seminars
such as “Seek Opportunities in Trading and Investment in Central Asia: Kazakhstan.” This
event was co-hosted with the Kazakh-Thai Alliance and the Embassy of the Republic of
Kazakhstan in Thailand on August 2, 2022. Furthermore, in cooperation with the United Nations
Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD), an international academic
seminar was arranged titled “The Key Findings of UNCTAD World Investment Report (WIR)
2022: Investment Trends and Investment Policy Developments in Recovery from the
COVID-19 Pandemic” on July 27, 2022. This seminar aimed not only to disseminate and
broadcast the findings from global investment trend analyses but also to enhance
comprehension and bolster the roles of both public and private sectors in developing nations
to pursue sustainable and holistic development across economic, social, and environmental
areas. Additionally, ITD held its annual international seminar, “Trade and Development
Regional Forum 2022: Futuristic Asia-Pacific,” on October 12, 2022, which tackled
comprehensive issues aiming toward readiness for the future.

ITD’s action plan for 2023 will persist in aligning with the policies of the government
and the Ministry of Commerce. A key part of this strategy involves the execution of the BCG
Connect project. This initiative aims to foster collaboration in the future food sector between
Thai and international entrepreneurs and to support Thai business owners in overseas
countries to penetrate the global future food market. Additionally, ITD spearheads the
Virtual Clinic project, designed to provide MSMEs access to new knowledge via contemporary
channels. Moreover, ITD is committed to educating government officials and entrepreneurs
about the various aspects of the green economy. These efforts will be executed in
collaboration with international at regional and global levels.

As the Executive Director of ITD, I would like to express my profound gratitude to the
Institute’s Board of Directors for their invaluable guidance and unwavering support of ITD’s
operations. I would also like to extend my appreciation to the management team and all
ITD staff, who have consistently performed their duties with dedication and tenacity,
propelling ITD toward achieving its intended goals. On this occasion, I wish to convey my
best wishes and encouragement for everyone’s continued success in their work. We aim for
ITD to excel as an institution dedicated to developing knowledge and providing academic
services in trade and sustainable development.

Mr. Manu Sithiprasasana
Executive Director
International Institute for Trade and Development (ITD)
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The initiative idea of establishment the
International Institute for Trade and
Development came from H.E. Rubens
Ricupero, Secretary - General of the United
Nations Conference on Trade and Development
(UNCTAD). Part of that suchidea is to response
as an appreciation for the Royal Thai
Government on the occasion that Thailand
hosted the Tenth Session of the United Nations
Conference on Trade and Development
(UNCTAD X) held in Bangkok. H.E. Ricupero
would like to establish the institute to enhance
the potential for trade and development in
developing countries in the region and the
world.

Therefore, on 17 March 1997
H.E. Rubens Ricupero visited Prime Minister
Chavalit Yongchaiyuth along with the senior
cabinet together with the objectives of
planning and organizing the Tenth Session of
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the United Nations Conference on Trade and
Development (UNCTAD X). The meeting
proposed to establish the Institute of
Development. The Royal Thai Government
and UNCTAD signed a Cooperation Agreement
establishing the International Institute for
Trade and Development (ITD)

During the Tenth Session of the United
Nations Conference on Trade and Development
(UNCTAD X) held in Bangkok between 12-19
February 2000, the meeting resolved to
establish a center of research and training in
the region, and to enhance the potential for
trade and development in developing countries
in the region and world.

The Royal Thai Government and
UNCTAD signed a Cooperation Agreement
establishing the International Institute for
Trade and Development (ITD) on 17 February
2000.

Establishment

The Institute was officially inaugurated
on 1 May 2002 during the Mid-Term Review
Conference of UNCTAD X, hosted by the Thai
Government. ITD is a government entity as a
public organization established under the
Royal Decree on the Establishment of the
International Institute for Trade and
Development (Public Organization), B.E.2544
(2001), which aims to provide academic
services for training and research in the fields
of trade and development. ITD is governed by
Board of Directors and has Executive Director
as its chief administrator.
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To provide knowledge to participants
from countries in the Asian region and
beyond through training and research
programmes in the area of international
trade, finance, investment and
development and in other relevant
areas to enable them to adjust
effectively to the globalization and
liberalization process
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To promote and strengthen regional
economic cooperation and integration
through sharing and exchanging of
experiences and knowledge
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To assist developing countries in the
Asian region in building their capacities
to formulate appropriate economic
policies and legislative adjustments in
accordance with their policies
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To serve as a focal point and provide
aforum for training and capacity-building
activities by UNCTAD and other
interested organizations




-

JdgnfFu

(14

UuniigudaniseanIusaIunIsaAn

Vision ®

\WaWmIUT SMEs Tnegandeu

To facilitate the trading of knowledge for the development of
Thai SMEs across the ASEAN market
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To enhance the capacity building of
developing countries, at both
regional and sub-regional levels, in
constituting economic policies and
legal measures collaboratively.
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To support and enhance regional
economic integration through the
exchange of experiences and
knowledges.

Mission
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To organize trainings and undertake
researches that link international
trade and development with
globalization in order to advance
human resource capabilities at both
regional and sub-regional levels.
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To be a dedicated trainings and
activities centre in collaboration with
UNCTAD and other international
organizations that focus on trade
and development.
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The Audit Committee of the International
Institute for Trade and Development (Public
Organization) (ITD) was established in
accordance with ITD’s order no. 89/2563 on
October 21, 2020. The committee is composed
of one board member, Ms. Philaslak Yukkasemwong,
one representative from the ex-officio members,
Mr. Pokai Sriratanobhas, and an external
advisor, Ms. Phongphan Jearwiriyanon, who
is an expert with knowledge and experience
in accounting and finance. Ms. Philaslak
Yukkasemwong presides over the Audit
Committee as its chairperson. At the same
time, Ms. Natthaporn Tothong, the internal
auditor, serves as the secretary.

During the fiscal year of 2022, the
Audit Committee convened seven times. All
three members of the Audit Committee were
present at all of these meetings. Meetings
were held in collaboration with management
and the internal audit unit to fulfill the duties
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assigned by the Board of Directors. These
duties were carried out in compliance with
the Audit Committee’s regulation of the
International Institute for Trade and
Development (Public Organization) concerning
internal audits issued in 2018. The Audit
Committee made concerted efforts to ensure
that the organization’s overall operations, as
well as those of individuals, during the fiscal
year 2022, conformed to the Ministry of
Finance’s standards and operational guidelines
for internal audits that apply to government
agencies.
The key highlights of the Audit Committee’s
performance are summarized as follows:
The committee has reviewed the
quarterly financial reports and the annual
financial statement in collaboration with the
auditor, the internal audit unit, and the
management team. The aim was to provide
valuable advice and opinions to ITD, ensuring




the accuracy, completeness, and timeliness
of the financial reporting process and the
disclosure of accounting information in
accordance with accounting policies, public
sector accounting standards, laws, and
regulations, as well as related rules issued
by ITD. Meetings were also held with the
auditor to instill confidence and trust in the
management regarding the use of financial
information and accounting reports. The
Audit Committee has offered recommendations
on accurately recording income and expenses
that occur during each quarter, per the
accounting period, and on the document
compilation process to align with the accounting
cycle, ensuring that expenses are accurately
recorded within the relevant accounting
period.
Examination of the adequacy of internal
controls and risk management systems
The committee has reviewed and
assessed the internal controls and risk
management reports to ensure that ITD’s
systems are sufficient and appropriate. After
examining the plans and outcomes of risk
management and internal controls addressing
potential corruption issues within the
organization, the Audit Committee offered
strategic risk recommendations that encompass
contingency measures for operations not
aligned with the organizational vision,
IT-related risks, particularly in software
procurement, financial risks due to potential
revenue declines, and expected increases in
future expenses.
Review of ITD’s Performance and Operations
The committee has reviewed the
operations of the relevant departments to
ensure they comply with the work plan,
budget management, financial management,
and procurement management, among
other things. The committee also verifies that
ITD’s work and operations adhere to policies,
laws, rules, regulations, orders, and the

decisions made by the Board of Directors.

In this regard, the Audit Committee
has provided recommendations regarding the
assessment of expenditures, allocated
budget items, operations following the annual
budget plan, and the process of regular
monitoring, tracking, and reporting.
Supervision of internal auditing

The Audit Committee has supervised
the operations of the internal audit unit to
ensure independence and appropriateness.
This has been achieved by reviewing and
updating the Audit Committee’s charter to
align with the scope of operational
responsibilities, reviewing the internal audit
charter, and approving and providing
recommendations on the annual audit plan
and audit report outcomes. This allows the
internal audit to operate effectively, and the
recommendations from the internal auditors
are acceptable, contributing to the efficiency,
effectiveness, and economy of the institution’s
overall operations. Additionally, the
performance of the internal auditors is
assessed, and the results of periodic self-as-
sessments are reviewed according to quality
assurance and improvement practices for
internal auditing. Moreover, support is
provided for the internal auditors to attend
training and develop knowledge for auditing
purposes.

The Audit Committee has provided
recommendations to ensure ITD’s internal
audit work complies with the Ministry of
Finance’s standards and guidelines for internal
audits for government agencies, ITD’s
regulations on internal audits, and the
internal audit charter.

Appointment of the auditor and consideration
of auditing fees

The Audit Committee has recommended
the appointment of Thirty-Four Audit Office
Co., Ltd. as the auditor assigned to evaluate
the expenditure and assets of ITD for the



fiscal year 2023. This decision has received
approval from the Board of Directors and the
State Audit Office.

Upon review, the Audit Committee has
concluded that ITD adheres to principles of
good corporate governance, maintains
sufficient risk management and internal

control procedures, and provides comprehensive,

accurate, and timely financial reports and
accounting disclosures. These are in line with
prescribed accounting policies and governmental
accounting standards. Additionally, ITD
consistently complies with relevant rules and
regulations and the policies set forth by the
Board of Directors.

Mrs. Philaslak Yukkasemwong
Chairman of the Audit Committee
20 December 2022
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a%"mmfmi"mﬁau,azL%auimaqﬁm'lgiuazu’s’mnisu SMEs
AURUIBUAUNTALAEMSNAILINS TUUSEINALAZAY
Useind

Fostering collaboration and connection of SMEs’
knowledge and innovation with domestic and
foreign trade and development agencies

a a v o )
Wadaauaunse SMEs Inglifidnenwgeaunsaudadiu
Taluandeou

Enhancing the capabilities of Thai SMEs to

Js:1Qu

|U-| KU1§ increase their potential and competitiveness
within the ASEAN region

Target

issues
Advocating for policies that promote SMEs and
reduce trade barriers and obstacles
Upgrading the organization through digital
technology and promoting good governance

ﬂEiUIU'I KUulgKan: {Usznaunsgsha SMEs fifianunfexlunissifiugsieseuinaseme

Primary Target Group: Entrepreneurs of SMEs that are prepared for international
business operations.

ﬂEiUlU'I KUI8SOV: Qﬂaﬂﬂiﬂﬁ’lﬁlﬁuﬂ'}ﬂ%ﬁLtaztaﬂ"ljuslugﬁﬂ'lﬂﬁLdeIEJ’J"l’l’a\‘iﬁ'Uﬁqﬁﬁﬁl SMEs
b |
(Supporting Role)

Primary Target Group: Staff from the regional governmental and private sectors
involved with SMEs business operations (Supporting Role).
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Sub-plan under the annual action plan

1. aswadwusiulionaziiow
lovoavdAndugna:usanssy SMEs
AUKUD8LIUGIUMSANIIA:NISWEUUN
nvfuus:inAna:zaivus:ins

o nagns | Strategies

(1.1) “a¥rainTetns venen1sén 1Wouleenis
A9Y)U NYUBIAAIINS” V89 SMEs Tuszdugiinnanu
ANTINLDFE)

(1.2) atvayunisiiraanislguseleviann
Voya/U1a1SAIUNITAITENINUTEINA Laaiiunis
waunsHIuALulagansaume

(1.1) “Build a network, expand trade,
connectinvestments, and support the knowledge”
of SMEs at a regional level through various
collaborations

(1.2) Facilitate access to and utilization
of international trade information/news, with
an emphasis on dissemination through
information technology

a >

The International Institute for Trade and Development
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FIURUIPIUAMNTIUTDFIUNTALAL
nMsWauslulsEialazAsUsEIma

FIUIUAINTIN/UFEYNANUTINTBAIUNTT
AwazN1sNaILINILUsEARAZ AN
Useind

MUIUMTURTRYA/A1IEITNIVINTT
NIUYDINIRING

FIUIUTUATMIAITATUAITATTENING
l £ =3 a
UsenANLASUNSINELNSDNaUNTn daAmn.

FUIUTYYAUNIAITAIUAITANTENIN
al £ 1
Usenanlasunsieuns

Indicators

Number of collaborative agencies in
trade and development, both domestic
and overseas

Number of collaborative trade and
development activities/meetings, both
domestically and overseas

Number of accesses to academic
information/news through digital
channels

Number of pieces of international trade
news/information disseminated to ITD
members

Number of pieces of international trade

news/information disseminated
(offline/online)

34 s1897uUs¥31U 2565

A19USEINA 12 K189
Tuuszna 3 ey

Baseline Data

2021

12 foreign agencies
3 domestic agencies

A0NUUSEUINUSLNALINDAISALATNISWRILA

Adnung

2565

M19USEINA 13 KUY

Tudsena 4 miieau

ANgUsEINA 4 AaNTSU
Tuuszna 3 Aanssu

3,500 A%
20 504

50 (394

2566

A19USEINA 14 KUY
Tuuszmna 5vaeau

M19UsEINA 4 ARSI
Tuuszna 4 Aanssu

4,200 A%q
25 L%I‘ﬂ\‘l

50 (394

Target Value

2022

13 foreign agencies
4 domestic agencies

4 overseas activities

3 domestic activities

3,500 accesses

20 pieces

50 pieces

2022

14 foreign agencies
5 domestic agencies

4 overseas activities

4 domestic activities

4,200 accesses

25 pieces

50 pieces
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1A59N15MIFUSEYNIVINITUINIBIR 1INTIAIUNITATAEATTHEAIL
(ITD International Academic Forum)

ITD International Academic Forum

1A539n15 MSME Hackathon EP1: la1znaindunaula
MSME Hackathon EP1: Breaking into the Southern China Market

1A59n15 ASEAN SME Economic Forum (&eqgs1iau SME‘lumsL‘ma
szuvilnaAsygialwiiensdioenlugliinnendeu HLTI AU
AINITUIUNIYIA

ASEAN SME Economic Forum: Reflections of SME Transitioning to
a New Economic System for ASEAN Region Export, presented
through an International Academic Forum

TassnismatinadiouaselviAuSnwgUsenauns SME wenisddaen
(SME Virtual Clinic)

SME Virtual Clinic

1A59n15 BCG Connex : MSME Digital Trade & Marketing Platform
BCG Connex: MSME Digital Trade & Marketing Platform

1AsaN15asTinduinaeuAsYgnae@euga 5.0 The Smart ASEAN
Influencer 5.0

The Smart ASEAN Influencer 5.0



2. IWNTQAIWAINSA SMEs
InefRiAnanIwgvauisandvgu
laluonBau

° nagns | Strategies

(1.1) Junalnarudisindenienisdn
(Aid for Trade) \WenanAugsha SMEs tnalidng
waalgyann

(1.2) iAuEaunIsAINIsaIULATaLESY
nslgansuselovinmensmungnvuaulauisuas
KUsenaunis

(1.1) Serve as an “Aid for Trade”
mechanism to push Thai SMEs into the value
chain

(1.2) Disseminate knowledge on trade
and investment and encourage the utilization
of trade privileges by policymakers and
entrepreneurs
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Adnung

FruaufnssUMIvINsRdasunaln

1 = v % %
ANUYILLURBEUTENOUNITNAIUATTAN
(Aid for Trade)

ﬁ]'IU"JUNﬂWﬂuﬂuIEJU'IEILLa”NUi“’ﬂE]Uﬂ’Ii‘VI
‘lﬂi‘Uﬂ'ﬁﬁﬂ LU ENSUS ﬁs%umamim

Maﬂ']ﬂﬁiﬂﬂ‘u’ﬂ\‘lN‘Uﬁuﬂﬂ‘Uﬂ'ﬁiu‘Vl?N
UiuLVIﬁ‘l/ﬂﬂiUﬂﬂiﬁ\‘lLﬁiﬂJWﬁNU’l

Fnudeidusuusiiadaasunisiaans
Usglgviinansenilaain
Kimuauleuny

Indicators

Baseline Data

2021

2565 2566

1 Aanssy 3 NANTSU
60 AU 75 AU
195.93 AUV 197.89 a1UUM
1 TolauBLUY 3 YoLAuDLUY

Target Value

2022 2023

Number of academic activities promoting
the Aid for Trade mechanism for
entrepreneurs

Number of policymakers and entrepreneurs
encouraged to utilize trade privileges

Value of international trade conducted by
entrepreneurs supported for development

Number of recommendations for promoting
the utilization of trade privileges received
from policymakers

1 activity 3 activity

60 people 75 people
195.93 million THB 197.89 million THB
1 recommendation 3 recommendation

Annual Report 2022
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Tasen1sinausuRUsEnauN1s : nangnsmeanlunIsianznain RCEP

Entrepreneur Training: Shortcut Course for Penetrating the RCEP
Market

lasensinausunangnstiniasain1sAseninelsema (Intensive
Training Course on Trade Negotiations Skills and Commercial Diplomacy)

Intensive Training Course on Trade Negotiation Skills and
Commercial Diplomac

Tasanistafia@sisass (ITD Public Forum) YseipugUnlng o
wumnsAuTmilafunsinsamuluiuiiualasesiaiiey

ITD Public Forum: Exploring New Issues for Trade and Investment
Cooperation in Special Economic Zones

TassnsufuiRn1senseiu MSMEs lieluyaAIN15d188n1nA21Y
»N&a3 RCEP (MSMEs to RCEP in Action)

MSMEs to RCEP in Action: Enhancing MSMEs Operations to
Increase Export Value from the RCEP Agreement

Iﬂ'i\iﬂ'l'i&lﬂ5uﬂ‘Uﬂ’]’iLL‘UQ‘UUNU’Suﬂ@Uﬂ’]iﬁWﬁ SMEs wag MSMEs VLVIEJ?{
91 %8U (Leading Women of SHE Economy: the Future Globalization
of Women Entrepreneurs in ASEAN)

Leading Women of the SHE Economy: The Future Globalization of
Women Entrepreneurs in ASEAN

1ASINISUANGRNTNISITEUNTADUATUNITATALNSWAIUISENINUSENA
(School of Trade and Development)

School of Trade and Development Project

Iﬂix‘if]']il,ﬂaﬂuaﬂﬁiiﬂlmﬂuﬂ'ﬂu‘ﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂ L‘tjauiaﬁ]aﬁﬂamiﬂﬂwﬂ a1n-
AU LINBYNTLTAUAISUYIIUYDI MSME

Transforming Obstacles into Challenges: Connecting Trade Logistics
between Thailand, Lao PDR, and China to Enhance MSME
Competitiveness
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3. wanduulgurgdviasu/aa
Jov1nanazauassAnIvnISANYDL
SMEs

° nagns | Strategies

(1.1) AINNISAILAZILASISHUINTAITAIUY
n1sAaznIsamuluauag : W3BUNSau 5895U
Uiy |

(1.2) Anwriasieingssidouineiaus
UlYUILLATHINTAISNLDBADAITWAILY SMES

(1.1) Forecast and analyze future trade
and investment measures: for preparation,
support, and protection

(1.2) Study and analyze regulations to
propose policies and measures that are
beneficial to the development of SMEs

77
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a AvIaunazAUdung | Indicators and

1 Uy
AUnNIY
2565 2566
FIIUUVILATIRAUNITATLALN TN - 1 unANY 2 UNAY
Tuauran
NAUIFY/ UINNTSU Talauaitaulauen 1 504 41509 41509

Tasun1swaiun/ wewnwstlulduseloud

Baseline Data Target Value

Indicators

2021

2022 2023

Number of analytical articles on future - 1 activity 3 activity
trade and investment

Research/innovation outputs and policy
recommendations that have been 1 output 4 output 4 output
developed/disseminated for application

e TassnsdAsy | Key p

Q Tﬂiﬁmsquéjamﬂmﬁnw’lLLasﬁlinﬂiawnﬂmiﬁ’lLﬁamsﬁ'ﬁum MSMEs
(Market Intelligence and Trade Foresight Center: MITFC for MSMEs)

Market Intelligence and Trade Foresight Center: MITFC for MSMEs

Tasansanwianudululdvasnisdnviduiinisldussleviiande
ANAININISAIESTRIUsEINAlUgiinIALELe UFTARA : Utilization of
Free Trade Agreement Ranking in Asian (UFTARA Index)

UFTARA: Utilization of Free Trade Agreement Ranking in Asian
(UFTARA Index)
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A project plan to enhance the competitiveness of medium, small,
and micro enterprises in Thailand through the utilization of trade
and international development agreements
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(1.1) Implement digital technology
systems in organizational management

(1.2) Develop personnel to be ethical,
competent, and adhere to good governance
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anuiswelalunsliiuinisues aaw. Sovay 87.11 Sowaz 85 Sowaz 85
nsusziunasssukarauluslanie Joaz 95.64 Jouar 85 Jouaz 85
NUAIAST
Baseline Data AnUrnung
Indicators
2021 2022 2023
Satisfaction level with the services 87.11% 85% 85%
provided by ITD
Evaluation of ethics and transparency of 95.64% 85% 85%

governmental agencies

e TasensdrAny | Key p
1ASINSNRAIUITEUUATAUNATUNITUSUTINNITIANS: ATUIU
UssUIULASUNY
Development of Information Systems for Organizational Management:
Focusing on Budgeting and Accounting
TassnsiaiussuvasaunadInsunsUssyuLazn1sUssgunialng
(30 mum'lu“lvm 21ANTANATUNITAITEUINUTSINA
Development of Information Systems for Remote Meetings and
Conferences at the new office at the International Trade Promotion

Building

o U

IassmsdanszuuAsevedana o drninaulnl eamsdaasunisan
FEIINNUsEINA

Procurement of Network Signal Systems at the new office at the
International Trade Promotion Building

s

lasamsdnmAgiuaenmasnsaulusunsuavans (Fms
NALNLY)

Procurement of Computers with Licensed Software
(for Replacement)
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IKey Projects and Achievements of

ITD in Trade and Development for
the Fiscal Year 2022

afuanuiiiouandeulesesdanuiuazuinnssu SMEs fumihsnudunsduagniswaumialy
Uszmawazaauseina

Fostering collaboration and connection of SMEs’ knowledge and innovation with domestic
and foreign trade and development agencies

iiudinAauanunsn SMEs Ingliiidnenmgeanansaudsiuldluendeu

Enhancing the capabilities of Thai SMEs to increase their potential and competitiveness
within the ASEAN region

nansuuleueduasy/antedninuazauassan1ansAnves SMEs

Advocating for policies that promote SMEs and reduce trade barriers and obstacles.
Anssuvhanlseleviiedeny

Social Contribution Activities
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Fostering collaboration and connection of SMEs’
knowledge and innovation with domestic and foreign
trade and development agencie
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Trade and Development Report 2021) 2) fanssy
FUUUNIBINITUIUBIALTES The Key Findings of
UNCTAD World Investment Report (WIR) 2022:
Investment Trends and Investment Policy
Developments in recovery from the COVID-19
pandemuc ag 3) Tﬂsqmanaususuauauwanams
mumsmuaumsaawu ma‘lmmumummswua
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In 2022, ITD implemented numerous
projects and activities to foster collaboration
and knowledge integration. Three prominent
examples are as follows: 1) the presentation
of the UNCTAD Trade and Development Report
2021, 2) an international academic seminar
titled “The Key Findings of UNCTAD World
Investment Report (WIR) 2022: Investment
Trends and Investment Policy Developments
in Recovery from the COVID-19 Pandemic,”
and 3) a short-term training course on trade
and investment under the 2022 Human
Resource Development Cooperation Plan.
Detailed information is provided below:
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The Trade and Development Report
(TDR) is annually prepared by the United
Nations Conference on Trade and Development
(UNCTAD). The report presents results of
analyses, economic trends, and trade and
development policy issues of global interest,
including practical recommendations that
various countries can consider when formulating
their trade policies. This report has been
globally disseminated since 1981. In this
regard, ITD, in collaboration with UNCTAD,
conducted a presentation of the Trade and
Development Report 2021 on January 20,
2022. The event was attended online by a
total of 317 participants. Its primary aim was
to disseminate the findings of UNCTAD’s Trade
and Development Report, presented by
experts, and to propose guidelines that wo
uld benefit Thailand and the Asian region. The
event served as a platform to share global
trade and development information, the results
of analyses, economic trends, and trade and
development policy issues of worldwide
interest. It also facilitated the exchange of
interesting perspectives and emerging issues
among the government agencies and the
private sector within the country and relevant
United Nations organizations.
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The benefits and outcomes of the event
could bolster its role as a knowledge hub for
trade and sustainable development. It could
further the innovation in knowledge
management, ensuring applicability in line
with emerging issues and enhancing
cooperation in academic and related activities.
Additionally, the knowledge gleaned from
completed UNCTAD research has been put
into practice. The UNCTAD Trade and
Development Report 2021: From Recovery
to Resilience: The Development Dimension
underscored environmental issues and
economic recovery, such as the impact of
access to vaccines and treatments on
economic revival, particularly in developing
countries that face significant recovery needs,
yet they struggle with access to treatments
and vaccines compared to developed nations
and the national debt recovery remains
primarily concentrated on key industries like
tourism. However, in light of the ongoing
pandemic, alternatives such as the renewable
energy industry should be considered by
Thailand. The issue of social disparities, which
have arisen from the varied responses of
different countries to the pandemic, is
another key concern, especially since some
countries gained earlier access to vaccines.
The challenge of reducing carbon dioxide
emissions and promoting clean energy use
(climate mitigation and climate adaptation)
within industries remains critical. Collective
understanding and action from all sectors are
needed, whether through a green or a
circular economy approach. Moreover, the
lower import taxes on health or environmentally
friendly products from developed
countries, compared to those in developing
countries, are also highlighted. This
discrepancy hinders developing countries
from effectively formulating and executing
environmental policies.
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APNSSUFULUNSBINISUNUNBTIGIZY The Key Findings of UNCTAD World
Investment Report (WIR) 2022: Investment Trends and Investment Policy
Developments in recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic

The International Seminar on
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Werlld lnvestment Repert (WIR) 20228

Investment Trends and Investment Palicy
Developments in Recovery from the COVID-19 Pandemic
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ITD, established under an agreement
between the Thai government and UNCTAD,
serves as a center for training, research
support, and academic services in international
trade, finance, treasury, investment,
development, and other related fields for
various personnel in the Asia-Pacific region.
ITD recently organized an international
academic seminar titled “The Key Findings
of UNCTAD World Investment Report (WIR)
2022: Investment Trends and Investment
Policy Developments in Recovery from the
COVID-19 Pandemic.” This event, held on
July 27, 2022, from 14:00-16:00 PM via an
online platform, was conducted by ITD in
collaboration with UNCTAD and the Council
forthe Development of Cambodia. The event
attracted participants from both the public
and private sectors, including those in trade,
investment, international cooperation,
policymakers, and media, both Thai and
international, totaling 418 people. This
seminar aimed to disseminate the analysis
of global investment trends and to invite
qualified experts from relevant agencies to
provide insightful suggestions for formulating
Thailand’s investment policies.
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The benefits and results from this
international academic seminar include
applying the knowledge gained from
completed research to enhance the
capabilities of personnel and create a
cooperative network for trade and
development in the Asia region. This effort
includes cooperation with UNCTAD and
regional universities or organizations to train
mid and high-level personnel in trade and
development. Such training occurs through
international conferences designed to
facilitate knowledge exchange on trade and
development. Countries in ASEAN and Asia
have shown support by sending their
personnel to participate in the training. This
effort aims to create international trade and
investment networks and generate knowledge
to aid in determining policies and measures
in international trade and investment.

The report explains the worldwide
trends and directions of Foreign Direct
Investment (FDI). In 2021, FDIincreased by
64% compared to its low level in 2020. This
recovery shows a return to growth, mainly
due to more mergers and acquisitions (M&A)
and the fast expansion of international
project loans. This was aided by improved
conditions for financing and policies pushing
for developing important infrastructure.
However, the ongoing war in Ukraine
continues to cause a crisis in three areas -
food, oil, and finance - affecting numerous
countries globally. The uncertainty among
investors could potentially lead to a downturn
in global FDIin 2022. Additionally, the report
indicates a rising trend in international
investment policies in sectors related to
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) in
developing countries, which rose to 70% in
2021. While most of the growth occurred in
the renewable energy sector, investments in
other SDG-related sectors, such as
infrastructure development, food and
agriculture, public health, sanitation, and
hygiene, were also seen. Investment in
renewable energy projects and efforts to
improve energy efficiency account for a
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substantial portion of investments to address
climate change. Most international investments
from the private sector in climate-related
areas primarily focus on mitigation measures,
with only 5% targeted at adapting to climate
change. Furthermore, more than 60% of these
investments are in developed countries, with
the private sector contributing 85% of all
investments. In contrast, nearly half of the
projects in developing countries involve joint
investments with the public sector.
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ITD, in partnership with the Thailand
International Cooperation Agency (TICA),
under the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, held a
training course on Trade Facilitation and Export
Promotion from September 12-16, 2022, at
the Berkeley Hotel Pratunam in Bangkok. This
initiative was a component of the 2022 Human
Resource Development Cooperation Plan,
intended for officials from the Lao PDR, with
participation from 15 representatives across
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the Ministry of Industry and Commerce, the
Ministry of Finance, and the Lao National
Chamber of Commerce and Industry. The goal
was to boost Thailand-Laos border trade,
introduce the Bio-Circular-Green (BCG)
Economy Model, and assist in shaping
economic and social policies in the Lao PDR.
Furthermore, the program delved into trade
and investment opportunities within the
China-Laos Economic Corridor and the
development of Thaiand Laos labor to enhance
the economy, trade, and investment at
national and regional scales.

Inthis training, personnel from the Lao
PDR had the opportunity to learn about
various topics such as China and its impact
on ASEAN-China trade, the enhancement of
trade facilitation and logistics development,
Thai-Laos trade and investment ina co-branding
format, and the critical directions of
international maritime freight services such
as seafreight rates. They also explored finance
and risk management in the export business
in the digital age, the development of cross-
border B2B e-commerce platforms, the
creation of international trade opportunities
through online channels, the promotion of
international trade using the BCG Model
strategy, and the future of trade facilitation
and export promotion, with increasing
emphasis on environmental issues. The
training also included study visits to Food
Innopolis and the Bangkok Port Customs
Office.
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Enhancing the capabilities of Thai SMEs to increase their
potential and competitiveness within the ASEAN region
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In 2022, ITD undertook projects and
activities to enhance the capabilities of Thai
SMEs to increase their potential and
competitiveness within the ASEAN region.
There were three outstanding projects as
follows: 1) Entrepreneur Training: Shortcut
Course for Penetrating the RCEP Market 2022,
2) Intensive Training Course on Commercial
Diplomacy and International Trade
Negotiations — Batch 2, and 3) a study project
on the Development of Digital Trade between
Thailand and CLMV countries. The details are
as follows:
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Giventhat Thailand ratified its membership
in the Regional Comprehensive Economic
Partnership (RCEP) agreement, the agreement
came into effect on January 1, 2022. The
RCEP currently includes a total of 15 member
countries, composed of 10 ASEAN members:
Brunei, Cambodia, Indonesia, Lao PDR,
Malaysia, Myanmar, Philippines, Singapore,
Thailand, and Vietnam, along with five
additional trading partners of ASEAN
countries: China, Japan, South Korea,
Australia, and New Zealand. This constitutes
the largest free trade area in the world,
encompassing 30.2% of the global population,
which equates to one-third of the world’s
total population. It also represents a combined
GDP of 28.5 trillion US dollars or 33.6% of
the world’s GDP, and a total trade value of
10.7 trillion US dollars, accounting for 30.3%
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of the world’s total trade value. Most importantly,
the RCEP agreement comprehensively
connects the ASEAN economy with the
global supply chain across all dimensions.

Given the abovementioned importance,
ITD has initiated the “Shortcut Course for
Penetrating the RCEP Market” (RCEP Marketer)
training program. The first batch of this
program included 25 participants, consisting
of personnel from government agencies and
SMEs entrepreneurs. The course was
conducted using a hybrid meeting format from
March 5 to July 27, 2022. The program
included online learning, on-site activities at
the Berkeley Hotel Pratunam in Bangkok, field
visits, dinner meetings, academic paper
presentations, and online business matching
sessions with RCEP member countries. The
total duration of the training was 150 hours.
The objective of the course was to educate
and develop middle-sized and small business
entrepreneurs (mid-level executives) to
understand better the RCEP agreement and
how to leverage it effectively for their trade
and export expansion to RCEP member
countries. This knowledge would pave the
way for future business development and
foster a network of mutual cooperation in the
future.

The main accomplishment of the first
batch of trainees in the RCEP Marketer course
was the development of a project named
“Golden Meat: Future of Human Longevity”
(Thai Plant-based Meat). The trainees jointly
analyzed a business plan, concluding that the
demand for plant-based food is set to increase
consistently. This is due to various socio-
economic factors causing a permanent shift
in consumer behavior, such as food security
issues, increasing meat prices, and the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. Several countries
in the Asia-Pacific region, including Australia,
New Zealand, China, South Korea, Japan, and
Indonesia, are viewed as potential export
markets due to their existing consumer base
for plant-based foods.
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iam Square Thalland

ITD, in collaboration with the Ministry
of Commerce, the United Nations Economic
and Social Commission for Asia and the
Pacific (UNESCAP), and the World Trade
Organization (WTO), hosted the Intensive
Training Course on Commercial Diplomacy
and International Trade Negotiations - Batch
2 from 20-24 June 2022, from 9:00 AM to
5:00 PM at the Sensations room, 4th floor of
the Novotel Bangkok Siam Square. Participants
included commercial diplomats, trade
negotiators, staff from trade regulatory
agencies, public and private sectors involved
in trade, investment, and international
cooperation, and commercial diplomats from
Asia-Pacific countries such as Cambodia, Iran,
Malaysia, Mongolia, Philippines, Vietnam,
South Korea, Timor-Leste, and Thailand, with
a total of 34 participants. The goal was to
prepare public and private sector officials
related to trade, investment, and international
cooperation, as well as commercial diplomats
from Asia-Pacific countries, to serve as
international trade negotiators in the future.
This would foster an exchange of perspectives
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between governments acting as negotiators,
policy regulators, and the private sector,
which utilizes various rules, regulations, and
channels. This mutual exchange of knowledge
and understanding across various trade
dimensions could lead to adoption of best
practices at both policy and operational
levels. It also promotes an understanding of
trade policies to further develop the trade
potential of each country through effective
information exchange.

The benefits and outcomes of this
training can enhance the capabilities of the
personneland foster a network of cooperation
in trade and development in the Asia region.
This includes cooperation with the UNCTAD
and universities/organizations in the region
to organize training for mid-level and high-level
personnel in trade and development and
create knowledge to support the formulation
of trade and international investment policies
and measures.

The main takeaway from this training
is that international trade negotiations and
commercial diplomacy are intricate processes.
These processes utilize a range of negotiation
tactics and require representatives from
relevant agencies to form a negotiation team,
with each member representing different
interests. The public and private sectors need
to understand and adeptly navigate these
discussions at national and international
levels. This ensures they are ideally positioned
to reap the maximum benefitsin an evolving
global trade landscape. At present, numerous
countries are preparing for new rounds of
negotiations under multilateral, bilateral, and
regional frameworks to promote free trade.
As aresult, a significant number of commercial
diplomats worldwide have the responsibility
of supporting international trade. These
diplomats play an important role in helping
their countries and regions reopen in the
aftermath of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Digital trade or e-commerce is a
rapidly growing trend in the business world.
This growth is driven by factors such as
high-speed internet, widespread mobile phone
usage, convenient payment methods, and
evolving consumer behavior. Thailand can
utilize digital trade to augment the export
value of Thai products to neighboring CLMV
(Cambodia, Lao PDR, Myanmar, and Vietnam)
countries and strengthen supply chain
connectivity on aregional CLMVT (Cambodia,
Lao PDR, Myanmar, Vietnam, and Thailand)
level. However, e-commerce in the CLMVT
region faces challenges, including
inconsistent international payment systems,
incomprehensive transportation networks,
and intricate rules and regulations.

This research project aims to analyze
the policies, laws, regulations, and measures
related to assessing the potential for digital
trade in neighboring countries. It also

proposes measures and policies for
international cooperation and recommends
forms of trade and investment in the digital
business sector. These recommendations aim
to promote digital trading systems between
Thailand and its neighboring CLMV countries,
benefiting all groups of entrepreneurs,
including SMEs. The study was conducted by
gathering secondary data, interviewing
stakeholders, and organizing two focus group
discussions in Nakhon Phanom Province and
Bangkok. A total of 50 participants from both
the public and private sectors participated in
these discussions.



NAINNISANEIINYLATINISAINAD HUBLAUDLUE
Waulaune laun

(1) wurgIunIAsguazataenvulng
m'muuanuammmwuauawwﬂmﬂﬂLLauswa"LUsmua
°luma~1mmummﬂsummwaumu iieidulasada
wu%wumu‘uauaiwwﬂiwnaums‘lws‘l%ﬂsﬂamu”lu
msUsvﬂaU55ﬂaﬂama1uUsULMﬂLwauUﬁu

(2) wmumnwwmmsmumwa’lwLm
Nﬂs‘"ﬂaUﬂ']{Lmsmww M VIWUAUDELAD WAL
ﬁnsjmwmsﬂsunaUﬁsnammaimmwﬂsuﬂaums
iuiwﬂuwuwmmmu AA3UNITITHUIN1YIVOS
Useinaitouthy mmmnuwm NMNAYAUY WAy
NEIAN °ImmLsmsuusuiuu”luwuwmmmu

(3) WaILIAMNSINTBAIUNNSELES HLAY
Waungsnandiaseaugiinig lngedunsauninu
Fauile ACMECS Inssjaitiuninusiuiionunsann
mmsmuﬂgwmﬂﬂLﬁmi’faqﬁ’wiﬁaa%ﬁa N1SANATY
YoyadIuyAAA N1SANATOITBLANUILAA LazAY
SunsUaeafodulowes

(4) wmmLmlamwasumsﬁﬂaﬁﬁai“wjﬂﬂm
ﬂ‘uﬂswmmwaumu Toegjaniuliinisusnisasuisas
WannsIaenveAuA N15TN5RY WasAnsYUAEUA
SEUINUTENA

The results from this research project have
led to several policy recommendations,
including;:

(1)Thai public and private sector
agencies should collaborate to create
databases of residential addresses and postal
codes in key cities of neighboring countries.
This would provide Thai businesses with
fundamental data structures to enhance their
digital business operations in these
neighboring countries.

(2)The digital skills and knowledge of
Thai entrepreneurs trading at the borders
should be enhanced. Moreover, the digital
business potential of new-generation
entrepreneurs in border areas should be
developed. Learning the languages of
neighboring countries, such as Khmer,
Vietnamese, and Lao, should be promoted,
particularly among the new generation in
these border areas.

(3)Cooperation should be fostered in
promoting and developing regional digital
business by utilizing the ACMECS cooperation
framework. The emphasis should be on
cooperation in developing legal standards
related to digital business, personal data
protection, consumer data protection, and
cybersecurity.

(4)A digital trade platform between
Thailand and its neighboring countries should
be developed. The focus should be on
providing comprehensive services, which
include product selection, payment, and
cross-border product transportation.
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Advocating for policies that promote SMEs and reduce
trade barriers and obstacles.
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In2022,ITD launched several projects
and activities to advance policies promoting
SMEs and reducing trade barriers and
challenges. Three examples of these projects
include 1) ITD Public Forum project, which
focused on emerging issues to explore ways
to foster trade and investment cooperation
in special economic zones. 2) the research
project titled “Assessment of Non-Tariff
Measures (NTMs) and their Impacts on
International Trade and Competitiveness of
Thailand and CLMV Countries, and
3) aconsultancy project to study and analyze
ways to enhance the processes related to
import-export documentation through the
exchange of best practices under the
ASEAN-Korea Free Trade Agreement (AKFTA),
titled “Cutting the Trade Cost: A Workshop to
Optimize Trade-related Procedures Through
Exchanges of Best Practices in AKFTA.” The
details of these are as follows:
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The Thai government has a policy of
establishing special economic zones along
the border to promote trade and attract direct
foreign investment. This involves developing
infrastructure and preparing in various aspects
tofacilitate alocal economy, trade, investment,
transportation, and logistics that are more
efficient and capable of connecting with
neighboring countries. Such initiatives would
lead to job creation, income generation, and
an improvement in the quality of life for the
people, thereby enhancing the country’s
competitiveness. To achieve the goal of
establishing special economic zones at the
border, skilled labor is crucial, particularly
those with expertise in technology and

innovation. However, Thailand faces a
challenge with a relatively low-skilled
workforce, especially in skills crucial for
targeted industries and advanced knowledge
of technology and innovation.

Moreover, the shift towards an aging
society could impact the future labor force.
Furthermore, the existing education system
fails to produce personnel who meet the
demands of the labor market, highlighting the
country’s escalating issue of a skilled labor
shortage. This situationis a structural problem
that impedes the nation’s competitiveness
and economic development.
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For this reason, ITD has organized
three brainstorming sessions conducted both
online and at the Pathumwan Princess Hotel
in Bangkok. The first session, “Improving Thai
Labor Productivity in the Nong Khai Special
Economic Zone,” occurred on January 28,
2022. The second, “Strategizing Thai Trade
with the China-Thailand Railway: Opportunities,
Obstacles, and Challenges,” was held on
March 30, 2022. Lastly, the third session was
named “ITD Launch of Idea Papers 2022:
Strategies on Trade and Thai Labor through
the China-Thailand Railway,” held on May 30,
2022. The objectives of these meetings were
to facilitate the exchange of views on various
policies and measures, encompassing trade,
investment, and the utilization of the
China-Laos railway for transporting goods to
the Chinese market. Further aims included
assessing the impact, opportunities, and
various challenges resulting from the
inauguration of the China-Laos railway and
applying these insights toward a standard
framework for enhancing labor productivity.

Moreover, the opinions and suggestions
from the brainstorming sessions were utilized
to develop policy recommendations. The
outcomes of these meetings led ITD to
formulate policy proposals titled “Improving
Thai Labor Productivity in the Nong Khai
Special Economic Zone,” which were then
presented to the governor of Nong Khai province.
Some of these suggestions included that
improvements to labor productivity must go
hand in hand with the province’s development,
which should have a clearly defined objective.
The advantages of being a special economic
area, coupled with the economic growth of
neighboring countries, should be leveraged
to establish a framework for determining an
appropriate workforce. This strategy will
enhance labor productivity to meet the
long-term needs of businesses.
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In line with the goal of the ASEAN
Economic Community, which supports the
creation of a single market and production
base among member countries, ASEAN nations
have reduced tariffs to zero percent on almost
all product categories to facilitate the free
movement of goods. However, Non-Tariff
Measures (NTMs) have continuously risen
since 2000. These measures can pose trade
barriers if implemented with a hidden intent
of trade protectionism or are overly numerous,
causing an unnecessary increase in business
costs.In 2021, the CLMVT countries (Cambodia,
Lao PDR, Myanmar, Vietnam, and Thailand)
collectively had over 8,700 NTM measures in
place.

This research project aims to study
and analyze non-tariff trade measures, assess
their impacts, and propose ways to improve
these NTMs to foster free trade at a sub-
regional level. The research was executed by
collecting secondary data, interviewing
stakeholders, and arranging two focus group
discussions in Nakhon Phanom province and
Bangkok. A total of 40 stakeholders from the
public and private sectors participated in
these meetings.
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The results of this research project offer the
following policy recommendations:

(1) Develop a national-level digital
system to report partner countries’
implementation of non-tariff trade measures.
This will allow importers and exporters to
report the enforcement of non-tariff measures
by their trading partners conveniently,
quickly, and in promptly. The system should
have a mechanism for data reporting and a
progress-tracking system that monitors the
problem-solving efforts of relevant government
agencies, thereby allowing businesses to be
consistently and systematically informed.

(2) Initiate cooperation with
neighboring countries to establish mutually
accepted standards for agricultural and
processed agricultural products to facilitate
cross-border import and export trade.

(3) Establish a mechanism for
inter-departmental cooperation among
government agencies, including those under
the Ministry of Commerce, the Ministry of
Agriculture and Cooperatives, the Ministry of
Industry, and the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA). This coordination aims to enhance
efficiency in efforts to mitigate the impact of
non-tariff trade measures enforced by
neighboring countries. Furthermore, this
initiative opens opportunities for SMEs to
share their opinions in defining measures that
can reduce the impact of these non-tariff
trade measures.

(4)Prepare for the implementation of
environmental non-tiff trade measures for
imported raw materials from neighboring
countries. This is crucial as developed
countries, which are markets for finished
goods from Thailand, are increasingly
implementing environmental measures on
imported goods. As some of Thailand’s
processed agricultural products rely on raw
materials imported from neighboring
countries,it is necessary to establish a
traceability system that inspects both safety
and environmental aspects.
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The ASEAN-Korea Free Trade Agreement
(AKFTA) aims to promote trade and investment
between ASEAN member countries and South
Korea. To fulfill this goal, applying digital
technology to streamline processes related
to import-export documentation, particularly
Certificates of Origin (CO0), is of utmost
importance. This is because it reduces the
steps, time, and costs associated with trading,
providing additional trade incentives.
Ultimately, this will stimulate trade and
investment between ASEAN member countries
and South Korea.

This research project is focused on
studying and analyzing the current process
of issuing Certificates of Origin (COO) in ASEAN
member countries and South Korea and
evaluating its impact on trade. The project
also examines the best practices for issuing
electronic COOs and proposes strategies for
enhancing these processes that could be
adopted within the AKFTA member countries.
The research methods include collecting
secondary data, conducting surveys,
interviewing policy enforcers, and organizing
a focus group meeting involving government
officials from all 11 countries, with a total of
50 participants.
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The outcomes of this research project have
led to these policy recommendations:

(1) ASEAN member countries and South
Korea should define and establish standards
for applying digital technology in issuing
Certificates of Origin (COO). This step would
lay the groundwork for developing unified
service systems, with priority given to the
needs of the service recipients.

(2) ASEAN member countries and South
Korea must advocate for adopting a
standardized electronic COO (e-COO) system,
utilizing similar technology and innovation
platforms. This strategy will enable officials
across various countries to exchange data
seamlessly.

(3) Both ASEAN member countries and

South Korea should advocate for using
self-certification systems to confirm the
origin of goods. Such systems can offer
increased convenience, expedite processes,
and reduce costs for exporters and government
officials.
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ITD’s Boxing Day 2022

ITD Staff’s Collective Contributions for the 2022 Boxing Day Auction
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On December 23, 2021, ITD organized the
Boxing Day 2022 fundraising event. Motivated
by their charitable spirit, ITD staff contributed
their collectibles and other valuable items for
auction. The event drew significant
participation and successfully raised a total
of 21,442 baht. All proceeds were generously
given to the Ramathibodi Foundation to aid
in procuring medical equipment.
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ITD Staff’s Blood Donation at the Thai Red Cross Society’s National Blood

Center
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In 2022, ITD’s executives and staff voluntarily
donated blood at the National Blood Center
of the Thai Red Cross Society on three
separate occasions. The first was on November
12,2021, the second on February 11, 2022,
and the third on September 2, 2022. ITD is
among the organizations that encourage its
staff to donate blood to the Thai Red Cross
Society at every opportunity while adhering
to stringent COVID-19 prevention measures.
These donations contribute to the blood bank
and play a crucial role in saving lives.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR

TO The Board of Directors of
The International Institute for Trade and Development (Public Organization)

Opinion

| have audited the financial reports of The International Institute for Trade and
Development (Public Organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
September 30, 2022, and statements of financial operations, statement of changes in net
assets/equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the finandial reports,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial reports above presents fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The International Institute for Trade and Development (Public Organization) as at
September 30, 2022 and result of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the public sector accounting standards and accounting policy required by the Ministry of
Finance.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audits in accordance with the State Audit Standards and Thai
Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent from
the Institute in accordance with the ethical requirements set out in the State Audit Standards issued
by the State Audit Commission and the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants includes
standard on independence set issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants) that are relevant to my audit of financial reports and | have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the State Audit Standards and the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is suffident and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other information

Management is responsible for other information. Other information comprises the
information included in the annual report. but does not include the financial reports and the auditor's
report contained therein. It is expected that the annual report will be prepared to me after the date
of this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial reports does not include the other information and | do
not provide my assurance in the other information.

My responsibilities in relation to auditing financial reports are reading and considering
whether the other information conflicts with the financial reports or with the knowledge obtained in
my audit, or whether the other information states the material misstatements

*-H-OHG*/Z
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When | read the annual report If | conclude that there are the material misstatements,
| must communicate such matter to those charged with governance in order for those charged with
governance to correct any misstatement.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for financial reports

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
reports. Public sector accounting standards and government accounting policies prescribed by the
Ministry of Finance and is responsible for such internal control as management determines necessary
to enable the preparation of financial reports that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing financial reports, the management is responsible for assessing the institution's
ability to operate as going concern, disclosure matters related to operate as going concern as appropriate
and use of accounting basis for operating as going concern unless there is a requirement in the law
or a government policy to dissolve the Institute or stop operating or unable to operate as going
concern,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reports
process of the Institute.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial reports
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on State Audit and
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the ageregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial reports.

In my audit in accordance with the Standards on State Audit and Auditing Standards, |
exercised professional judement and observation and skepticism throughout the audit. My audit
operation includes:

® [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial reports,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.
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® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Institute ability to continue as
a2 going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in
my auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial reports or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Institute to
cease to continue as a going concern.

® FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial reports,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial reports represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.
The encagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Mr. Suwat Maneekanoksakul.

(Mr. Suwat Maneekanoksakul)
Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 8134

Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited
Bangkok, Thailand
January 23, 2023
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THE INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE FOR TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT (PUBLIC ORGANIZATION)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

(Unit : Baht)
Note 2022 2021
ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 48,679,118.71 50,212,590.48

Other short-term receivables 6 131,319.55 97,532.24

Short-term investments 7 - 5,000,000.00

Inventory 8 1,321,097.93 2,070,853.48

Other current assets 9 260,833.06 227,019.46

Total current assets 50,392,369.25 57,607,995.66

Non-current assets

Building and equipment - net 10 8,425,483.35 3,954,215.93

Intangible Assets - net 11 563,999.71 896,528.53

Other non-current assets 6,300.00 6,300.00

Total non-current assets 8,995,783.06 4,857,044.46
Total assets 59,388,152.31 62,465,040.12
Note to financial statements form an integral part of these financial reports.

/f/‘//"’ s/l @7 AO/V
(Mr. Panumas Thepthong) (Mr. Manu Sithiprasasana)
Director, Office of Administration Executive Director, International Institute for Trade and
Development
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THE INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE FOR TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT (PUBLIC ORGANIZATION)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current liabilities
Other short-term creditors
Transfer payable and short-term subsidy
Short term deposit
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS/EQUITY
Capital
The revenue is over the expenditures
Total net assets/equity
Total liabilities and net assets/equity

Note

12

14
15

17
18

5
(Unit : Baht)

2022 2021
1,304,834.65 1,362,373.09
1,443 575.11 4,334,951.98
520,344.96 268,430.65
135,794.91 237,800.54
3,404,549.63 6,203,556.26
3,404,549.63 6,203,556.26
35,070,700.00 35,070,700.00
20,912,902.68 21,190,783.86

55,983,602.68

56,261,483.86

59,388,152.31

62,465,040.12

Note to financial statements form an integral part of these financial reports.

@7,!@/

Sy T I 6
(Mr. Panumas Thepthong) (Mr. Manu Sithiprasasana)
Director, Office of Administration Executive Director, International Institute for Trade and
Development
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THE INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE FOR TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT (PUBLIC ORGANIZATION)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

(Unit : Baht)
Note 2022 2021
Revenues from operations
Revenue from the government budget 19 35,448,600.00 29,752,300.00
Revenue from governmental agencies subsidy 20 4,391,376.87 2,123,356.94
Revenue from trade and services 21, 30 3,014,594 .53 3,494,528.00
Other income 22, 30 325,851.82 344,624.02
Total revenues 43,180,423.22 35,714,808.96
Expenses from operations
Personnel expenses 23 23,834,920.65 22,258,624.82
Retirement money 24 553,860.00 811,172.00
Compensation 25 341,000.00 120,000.00
Living expenses 26 16,551,265.33 15,718,006.76
Material cost 27 282,320,97 344,131.53
Public Utilities 28 319,036.61 427,473.88
Depreciation and amortization Cost 29 1,482,355.84 1,367,845.25
Other expenses - 7,104.83
Total expenses 43,364,759.40 41,054,359.07
Net revenues under expenses (184,336.18) (5,339,550.11)
Note to financial statements form an integral part of these financial reports.
e fo S, A~
(Mr. Panumas Thepthong) (Mr. Manu Sithiprasasana)
Director, Office of Administration Executive Director, International Institute for Trade and
Development
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THE INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE FOR TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT (PUBLIC ORGANIZATION)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS/EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

(Unit : Baht)
Capital Revenue Over The total of
(Under) net assts/
Accumulated
Note Expenses
Balance as of September 30, 2020 35,070,700.00 26,530,333.97 61,601,033.97
The change in net assets/Capital as of 2021
Revenue over (under) expenses as for the quarter - (5,339,550.11)  (5,339,550.11)
Balance as of September 30, 2021 35,070,700.00 21,190,783.86 56,261,483.86
Balance as of September 30, 2021 35,070,700.00 21,190,783.86 56,261,483.86
Cumulative effect from prior year’s error correction 18 - (93,545.00) (93,545.00)
Balance as of September 30, 2021 - adjusted 35,070,700.00 21,097,238.86 56,167,938.86
The change in net assets/Capital as of 2022
Revenue over (under) expenses as for the quarter - (184,236.18) (184,336.18)
Balance as of September 30, 2022 35,070,700.00 20,912,902.68 55,983,602.68
Note to financial statements form an integral part of these financial reports.
Pyl Gy A
(Mr. Panumas Thepthong) (Mr. Manu Sithiprasasana)
Director, Office of Administration Executive Director, International Institute for. Trade and

Development
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THE INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE FOR TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT (PUBLIC ORGANIZATION)
CASH FLOWS STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
(Unit : Baht)

Sources of cash from operating activities

Net revenues over expenses

Adjustments for net revenues over expenses to cash
provided from (used for) operating activities

Cumulative effect from prior year’s error correction

2022

2021

(184,336.18)

(93,545.00)

(5,339,550.11)

Depreciation 1,149,827.02 1,144,077.74

Amortization 332,528.82 223,767.51

(Gain) loss from sale of fixed asset (6,007.89) 7,104.83

Interest received (268,422.90) (313,135.48)
Net profit (loss) from operating activities before

changes in operating assets and liabilities 930,043.87 (8,277,735.51)

Decrease (Increase) in operating assets

Other short-term receivables (108,465.13) 81,375.00
Inventory 749,755.55 (228,910.23)
Other current assets (33,813.60) 132,675.79
Other non-current assets - (600.00)
Increase (Decrease) in operating liabilities
Other short-term creditors (57,538.44) (162,745.17)
Transfer payable and short-term subsidy (2,891,376.87) 4,334,951.98
Short term deposit 251,914.31 (55,424.73)
Increase (Decrease) in other current liabilities (102,005.63) 131,705.06
Net cash (used for) provided from operating activities (1,261,485.94) (44,707.81)

Note to financial statements form an integral part of these financial reports.

Ao

(Mr. Manu Sithiprasasana)

// e /WW 5
(Mr. Panumas Thepthong)
Director, Office of Administration Executive Director, International Institute for Trade and

Development
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THE INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE FOR TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT (PUBLIC ORGANIZATION)
CASH FLOWS STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

(Unit : Baht)
2022 2021
Sources of cash from investing activities
Cash paid from investments - (5,000,000.00)
Cash received from investments 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
Acquisitions of equipment (5,628,986.55) (519,027.23)
Acquisitions of intangible assets - (573,700.00)
Cash received from sale asset 13,900.00 2,900.00
Interest received from short-term investment 30,400.00 93,200.00
Interest received from bank deposit 312,700.72 202,838.20
Net cash used for investing activities (271,985.83) (1,193,789.03)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,533,471.77) (1,238,496.84)
Cash and equivalents at the beginning of period 50,212,590.48 51,451,087.32
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 48,679,118.71 50,212,590.48
Note to financial statements form an integral part of these financial reports.
///;mﬁ Oéfvmé C% /@4/
(Mr. Panumas Thepthong) (Mr. Manu Sithiprasasana)
Director, Office of Administration Executive Director, International Institute for Trade and
Development
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THE INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE FOR TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT (PUBLIC ORGANIZATION)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
11  Institution establishment

The International Institute for Trade and Development (Public Organization), or [TD in
brief, is located on the 8th Floor, Witthayaphatthana Building, Chulalongkorn University, has officially
started its services since May 1, 2002 by receiving initial capital of 10,000,000 baht, as according the
cabinet’s resolution on February 13, 2000 for the establishment and operation of the institute. Later
in the year 2003, the institute received the approval to use the central budget under the category of
reserve for emergency or necessary situations, as according to the letter from the Office of the
Secretariat of the Prime Minister No. PM 0407/31683 dated October 18, 2022 informing [TD on
providing additional capital at the amount of 25,070,700 baht increasing the initial capital to be at
35,070,700 baht from 2003 onward.

In 2022, the International Institute for Trade and Development (Public Organization)
received the budget at the amount of 35,448,600.00 baht.

1.2  Objectives of the institution

To organize education, training and support for research for personnel of various
countries, espedially in the Asian region in international trade, finance, treasury, investment,
development and other related fields. To enable those personnel to perform their duties effectively
in accordance with globalization and various trade liberalization euidelines and provide assistance to
developing countries, especially in the Asian region. To strengthen the capacity and ability to
formulate appropriate economic policies together and to formulate legal measures in accordance
with such policies. This includes promoting and supporting regional economic cooperation and
building unity by exchanging experiences and knowledge as a center for organizing training and
activities enhance various potential together with the United Nations Secretariat on Trade and
Development and other relevant organizations.

13 Location of the institution
The International Institute for Trade and Development (Public Organization) or IMD is
located on the 8 th Floor, Witthayaphatthana Building, Chulalongkorn University, Bangkok or other
location in Bangkok or in neighbor provinces.
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2. THE CRITERIA IN PREPARING FINANCIAL REPORT

This financial report of the International Institute for Trade and Development (Public
Organization) had been prepared in accordance with the Public Sector Accounting Standards and Public
Sector Accounting Policies (No. 2) B.E. 2564 set by the Ministry of Finance and prepared in accordance
with the finandial report presentation format of the government agencies as specified in accordance with
the letter of the Comptroller General's Department No. Kor Kor 0410.2/Vor 479 dated October 2, 2020.
disclosed in the accountancy policy.

This financial report was prepared on original cost basis unless otherwise would be
disclosed in the accountancy policy.

3, NEW AND REVISED GOVERNMANT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND THE GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The Public Sector Accounting Standards and the Public Sector Accounting Policies
that were effective for the accounting period beginning on or after October 1, 2021 were as follows:
- Government accounting policy: Tax Certificate
The new public sector accounting policies and the revised version above did not
have any material impact on the financial report for the current period.

4. THE SUMMARY OF THE SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
41 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents were cash in hands, all types of bank deposits, but did not
include bank deposits that would be repaid after the specified period, nor the liquid short term
investment which after the due date could change into cash within 3 months.

4.2 Other short-term receivable
Borrowing receivables were the receivables within the institution in the case of
government official, employee or officer borrowing money to pay for work without interest, such as a
debtor from the budget, off-budget receivables were stated at the realizable value without
allowance for doubtful accounts.

43 Investment

Investments were fixed bank deposits with maturity more than 3 months, debt securities,
equity securities and other assets held for returns.

The institute was classified as short-term investments or classified as long-term investments
as follows:

Short-term investments were investments that the institution intended to hold for no
more than 1 year or repay within 1 year from the end of the reporting period

Long-term investment were investments that the institution intended to hold for
more than 1 year or repayment is due for more than 1 year from the end of the reporting period

Annual Report 2022
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4.4  Inventory
Inventory means consurmables which [TD used for its operation, generally they did
not have high cost and were not durable. Their costs should be presented by using first in first out

system.

4.5  Building and Equipment

The institute stated buildings and equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation
and allowance for impairment (if any).

The institute recognized the list of equipment only items with a minimum value per
unit or per set of Baht 10,000 or more, except items acquired before 2020 were recognized as
equipment when the minimum value was Baht 5,000 or more. Fair value, which is the amount at
which an asset can be exchanged or a liability was settled in a transaction that occurred when both
parties were knowledgeable and willing to trade. and can negotiate prices independently in the
manner of those who were not related to each other

" Cost included direct costs associated with acquiring the asset to keep the asset in a
condition and location ready to be used according to the wishes of the management. The cost of a
self-constructed asset comprises the cost of materials. direct labor and other direct costs related to
the acquisition of assets. '

Components of building items and each device had a different form and useful life
and with significant costs. Those components were recorded separately.

Subsequent costs were the cost of replacing components recognized as part of the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment item to the extent that it was probable that future
economic benefits or service potential will increase from that item and can measure the cost of that
transaction reliably and the value of the replaced part was deducted from the account at book
value. The cost incurred in building maintenance and recurring equipment was recognized as
incurred expense.

Depreciation should be noted as expenses in the balance sheet of financial performance,

calculated by using straight line method as according to its estimated useful lives as followings;

A T
Office’s durable articles 3-10 year
Advertising and promaotion equipment 5-8 year
Durable articles such as computer 3-5 year
Office improvement 8-20 year
Durable articles such as vehicle 8 year
Office fixture equipment 10 vyear
Electric and radio equipment 5 year

Annual Report 2022
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Equipment received from the transfer of the establishment of a public organization
Depreciation was based on the remaining useful life of the equipment.

4.6 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets were costs directly attributable to the development of computer
programs. including various work systems and website cost both obtained from purchasing and the
employment was developed. The institute had the right to control the utilization of that asset and
expects economic benefits or service potential from that asset for more than one year. The Institute
stated intangible assets at cost less accumulated amortization and allowance for impairment (if any).

Amortization of intangible assets was charged to the statement of financial results
calculated by the straight-line method with estimated useful life as follows

Esti iv r
Computer program 3 year
Computer system 5 year

4.7  Short term Receivables
The institute recognized other short-term creditors from purchases of goeds and
services and payable for capital expenditures when the institution Goods and services and assets had
been received from the seller. The receipt of goods and services and assets were the point at which
the Institute had already been inspected.

4.8 Transfer payable and subsidy
The institute received the fund from the Office of the Science, Research and
Innovation Commission to support activities that promote and support the development of science.
and when the activity was completed. In the case that there was fund left over from the
implementation of the plan, the remaining subsidy plus interest must be remitted to the SEC Office
within 60 days from the due date of operation to match with the related costs of subsidy.

49 Short-Term Acceptable Deposit
The institute recognized the deposit when it was received with the value of the
amount that the institute had. received under the obligation to pay back under the contractual
obligations work collateral or any other money which must be paid back to the depositor within a
period of not more than 1 year will be classified as a short-term deposit. If the deposit at the
institution accepted with an obligation to pay back more than 1 year will be classified as long-term
deposits.

Other deposit accounts will record the interest arising from the subsidy received from
Thailand Science Research and Innovation. In the case when the activities are completed, the
balance of the subsidy with interest must be returned to the office within 60 days from the due date

of the operation period.
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4.10 Revenue and expense recognition

Budget income in the case of withdrawing money into the institution's accounted to
be repaid to those who were entitled to receive money of the Institute budget revenue recognized
when a disbursement request was submitted to the Treasury.

Income from subsidies - government agencies (IRD) will be recorded as liabilities
under the deferred revenue account when the institution receives subsidies and had not performed
as subsidy - government agency (IRD) when it had been implemented according to the amount of
expenses from the actual project subsidy in the accounting period.

Operating income was recognized when the results of transactions related to
operations can be estimated reliably. Transactions related to operations were recognized as revenue
based on the stage of completion of the transaction as at the end of the reporting period The
outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all of the following conditions were met as
follows:

(1) The institution can measure the amount of income reliably.

(2) It is quite possible that the Institute will receive ecanomic benefits or service

potential in connection with that transaction

(3) The institution can reliably measure the level of success of the transaction as at

the date of the financial report.

(4) The institution is able to reliably measure the costs incurred and the costs

incurred to complete the transaction.

Interest income was interest income on bank deposits, recognized on a time proportion basis.

Other income and other expenses were recognized on an accrual basis.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
cash and cash equivalents consisted of :

Baht
2022 2021
Institution deposit
Budget 12,955,233.28 23,665,244.23
Off-budget 8,043,563.31 6,050,488.66
Subsidy for activities to promote and support
development of science, research and innovation  1,648,363.19 4,485,008.12

Total financial institution deposit
Fixed deposit which has the due date within 3 months
Total cash and deposits at Bank

22,647,159.78

34,200,741.01

26,031,958.93

16,011,849.47

48,679,118.71

50,212,590.48

As at September 30, 2022 and 2021, the savings deposit of the institution carried the
interest of 0.25 - 0.30% per annum and 0.25 - 0.45% per annum, respectively. The 3-month fixed
deposit as at September 30, 2022 and 2021, carried the interest of 0.25 - 0.60% per annum and 0.25

- 0.40% per annum, respectively.
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6. OTHER SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

Other short-term receivables consist of :

Baht
2022 2021
Loan receivable 21,700.00 -
Accrued interest 22,854.42 §7,532.24
Receivables- retention deposit 86,765.13 -
Total other short-term receivables 131,319.55 97,532.24
Loan receivable as at period end classified by aging
Baht
2022 2021

Loan receivable
Not yet due 21,700.00 -
Overdue less than 15 days - -
Overdue more than 15 days = -
Total loan receivable 21,700.00 -

Receivables - retention deposit as of September 30, 2022 were at the amount of
86,765.13 baht. They were the retention deposit which ITD deducted from the revenues of each period

for using as retention deposit as per contract.

7. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments consist of ;

Baht
2022 2021
Special Lottery of The Government Savings Bank - 5,000,000.00
Total short-term investments - 5,000,000.00

The short-term investment as of September 30, 2021 was at the amount of 5,000,000.00
baht which was the investment in special lottery of the Government Savings Bank and has 3 year ages

and it would due on June 13, 2022. It is eligible to win the prize for 36 times.
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8. INVENTORY

Inventory consist of :

Office consumables

Consumables for Public Relations

Total inventory

9. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of :

Prepaid Expense

Total other current assets

10. BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT - NET
Building and equipment - net consist of :

Cost

Office improvement

Office durable articles

Advertise and publish durable articles
Computer durable articles

Vehicle durable articles

Office decoration durable articles
Electricity and radio durable articles

Total Cost

Less Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation

Office improvement

Office durable articles

Advertise and publish durable articles
Computer durable articles

Vehicle durable articles

Office decoration durable articles
Electricity and radio durable articles

Total accumulated depreciation

Building and Equipment - net

Construction in progress

Total Building and Equipment - nat

16
Baht
2022 2021

571,291.14 605,245.68

749,806.79 1,465,607.80

1,321,097.93 2,070,853.48

Baht
2022 2021
260,833.06 227,019.46
260,833.06 227,019.46
Baht
Book value Additions Decrease Book value
As at 30 Sep 2021 As at 30 Sep 2022

9,103,579.51 99,686.55 = 9,203,266.06
3,432,258.92 & (21,651.84) 3,410,607.08
1,645,265.79 - - 1,645,265.79
3,044,063.18 = (321,097.70) 2,722,965.48
1,082,000.00 - - 1,082,000.00
16,000.00 = - 16,000.00
242,248.00 = - 242,248,00
18,565,415.40 59,686.55 (342,749.54) 18,322,352.41
(6,817,291.89) (596,682.24) = (7,413,574.13)
(2,705,108.61) (145,922.91) 20,730.77 (2,830,3200.75)
(1,314,319.07) (112,353.35) - (1,426,672.42)
(2,615,064.77) (246,422.32) 314,126 65 (2,547,360.43)
(1,081,999.00} - - (1,081,999.00)
(15,998.00) . = (15,998.00})
(61,418.13) (48,446.20) - (109,864.33)
(14,611,199.47) (1,149,827.02) 334,857.43 (15,426,169.06)
3,254,215.593 2,896,183.35
- 5,525,300.00 - 5,529,300.00
3,954,21593 8,425,483.35
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Depreciation

Gain (loss) from sale of fixed asset

Cost

Office improvement

Office durable articles

Advertise and publish durable articles

Computer durable articles

Vehicle durable articles

Office decoration durable articles

Electricity and radio durable articles
Total Cost

Less Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated depreciation

Office improvement

Office durable articles

Advertise and publish durable articles

Computer durable articles

Vehicle durable articles

Office decoration durable articles

Electricity and radio durable articles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total Building and Equipment - net

Depreciation

Gain (loss) from sale of fixed asset

17
Baht
2022 2021

1,149,827.02 1,144 077.74

6,007.89 (7,104.83})
Baht
Book value Additicns Decrease Book value

As at 30 Sep 2020 As at 30 Sep 2021
8,600,602.28 502,977.23 - 9,103,579.51
3,608,521.92 16,050.00 (192,313.00) 3432,258.92
1,683,732.29 5 (38,466.50) 1,645,265.79
3,202,863.18 E (158,800.00) 3,044,063.18
1,082,000.00 . = 1,082,000.00
16,000.00 “ - 16,000.00
242,248.00 - % 242,248,00
18,435,967.67 519,027.23 (389,579.50) 18,565,415.40
(6,249,400.95) (567,850.94) = (6,817,291.89}
(2,747,638.32) (149,146 35) 191,676.06 (2,705,108.61)
(1,227,631.48) (115,780.20) 29,102.61 (1,314,319.07)
(2,511,056.72) (262,804.05) 158,796.00 (2,615,064.77)
(1,081,999.00) - - (1,081,999.00)
(15,998.00) - - (15,998.00)
(12,971.93) (48,446.20) (61,418.13)
(13,846,696.40) (1,144,077.74) 379.574.67 (14,611,199.47)
4,589,271.27 3,554,215.53

Baht
2022 2021
1,144,077.74 1,076,856.98
(7,104.83) 8,74543

The book value of the ITD’s building and equipment before deducting accumulated

depreciation, deduced full depreciation but still in use as of September 30,2022 and 2021 were at
the amount of 6,359,392.96 baht and 6,603,578.91 baht respectively.

The office building belongs to Chulalongkorn University which has allowed [TD to make

use of it.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET
Intangible assets - net consisted of :
Baht
Book value Additicns Decrease Book value
As at 30 Sep 2021 As at 30 Sep 2022
Cost
Computer software 10,616,009.04 - - 10,616,009.04
Computer software durable articles 115,176.94 & 115,176.94
Total Cost 10,731,185.98 - - 10,731,185.98
Less Accumulated amortization
Computer software (9,719,482.51) (332,528.82) - (10,052,011.33)
Computer software durable articles (115,174.94) - - (115,174.94)
Total accumulated amortization (9,834,657.45) (332,528.82) - (10,167,186.27)
Intangible assets - net 896,528.53 563,999.71
Baht
2022 2021
Accumulated amortization 332,528.82 223,767.51
Baht
Book value Additions Decrease Book value
As at 30 Sep 2020 As at 30 Sep 2021
Cost
Computer software 9,642,309.04 973,700.00 - 10,616,009.04
Computer software durable articles 115,176.94 - - 115,176.94
Total Cost 9,757,485.98 973,700.00 - 10,731,185.98
Less Accumulated amortization
Computer software (9,495,715.00)  (223,767.51) - (9,719,482.51)
Computer software durable articles (115,174.94) . * (115,174.94)
Total accumulated amortization  (9,610,889.94) (223,767.51) - (9,834,657.45)
Intangible assets - net 146,596.04 896,528.53
Baht
2021 2020
Accumulated amortization 223,767.51 271,228.65

The book value of the ITD’s accumulated amortization intangible assets before
accumulated depreciation, deduced full depreciation but still in use as of September 30, 2022 and
2021 were at the amount of 9,733,496.58 baht and 9,733,496.58 baht respectively.
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12. OTHER SHORT-TERM CREDITORS

Other short-term creditors consist of :

Baht
2022 2021
Accrued utility expenses 16,771.85 67,903.53
Accrued professional fee 100,000.00 120,000.00
Accrued Service agreement expenses 165,106.35 633,760.54
Accrued Research expenses 216,338.75 51,303.36
Accrued Seminar training expenses 596,600.00 150,000.00
Other accrued expenses 210,017.70 339.,405.66
Total other short-term creditors 1,304,834.65 1,362,373.09
13. TRANSFER PAYABLE AND SHORT-TERM SUBSIDY
Transfer payable and short-term subsidy consist of:
Baht
2022 2021
Deferred income 1,443,575.11 4,334,951.98
Total transfer payable and short-term subsidy 1,443,575.11 4,334,951.98

As at September 30, 2022, transfer payable and short-term subsidy amounted of Baht
1,443,575.11 were the fund that the Office of the Science Research and Innovation Promotion
Commission had subsidized for activities to promote and support science development and upon
completion of activities. In the case that there was the fund left over from the implementation of
the plan, the remaining subsidies must be remitted together with interest returned to the office
within 60 days from the expiration of the period of operation. It had been adjusted as income from
subsidies - government agency (IRD) amounted of Baht 4,391,376.87.

14, SHORT-TERM ACCEPTABLE DEPOSIT
Short-Term Acceptable Deposit consist of ;

Baht
2022 2021
Other depasit 9,885.52 -
Contract guarantee deposit 510,459.44 236,631.23
Retention Deposit = 31,799.42
Total short-Term Acceptable Deposit 520,344.96 268,430.65

Annual Report 2022
The International Institute for Trade and Development

109



G55HUA

DHARMNITI

20
wnewefi 15 wi‘fﬁwquﬁau%‘lu
wilauvuisudu Ussneuday
UM
2565 2564
MRl w fidresords 135,794.91 237,800.54
sumilaumuiieudu 135,794.91 237,800.54
1.’[!.]'1EJL‘14191ﬁ 16 AsEyNW
(1) anszgniumudygeieniiduanu
Gl 'Lug’mzQwhﬁa"’mwLﬁuﬂsuﬁﬂﬁﬁaw’w‘tuamﬂmmuﬁzyzy%wﬁ'nﬁumu fail
UM
2565 2564
TadAu 10 405,375.00 414,321.00
39U 405,375.00 414,321.00

@  aszaaiusudyandeiiunu

- ar ol g o = =yoad at Y A'-'J o al s
aaw. dnseyniupmudygrnedidunuidouasdnyaanauimsau a Tufl 30 fueney 2565
wae 2564 [Wudimuausiu 2,306,945.40 U Uag 2,249,010.78 U aaldsiu

w oo wr i '
(3)  anssyniufeIiuneedienu

um

Fynyieelalasus 2565 2564

psuardagnaina 2,610,288.76 -
Eietl 2,610,288.76 €

anw. dmesgniudeaiuiandyardaneaiis Yol uasdamduning

anewai 17 vy

o1 Sufl 30 fugney 2565 way 2564 YU 14U 35,070,700.00 U Usznousienindduiu
TouandninauANENIIUNITNITRANANYY ('Fl'ﬂ“d"i]"'lEJ‘a'mJLLFHZJU%'UU‘;NLLﬂzﬂﬂLLﬁisiﬁn'luﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬂ) U
3,472,180.00 U Ruiulauandrinnuanenssunisniseaufneinau 6,527,820.00 uw wazantulasu
ayiAsunans srwnsiudisesiioiensdaniduniadiiuiodunuusvidudindudn Wudiuau
25,070,700.00 U

110 s1897uUs¢31U 2565
o ; 4 Y .
A0 TUTENINUTEINALINDNITATLAENITHRIUN



DHARMNITI 20

15. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities consist of :

Baht
2022 2021
Withholding Tax payable 135,794.91 237,800.54
Total other current liabilities 135,794.91 237,800.54

16. LIABILITIES
1)  Liabilities from leasing contract
ITD as tenant had the minimum payment in the future as according to the leasing

contract as follows;

Baht
2022 2021
Not more than 1 year 405,375.00 414,321.00
Total 405,375.00 414,321.00

2)  Liabilities from contract
[TD had liabilities from research contract and other services contract as of September 30,
2022 and 2021 at the total amount of 2,306,945.40 baht and 2,249,010.78 baht respectively.

(3)  Obligation under capital expenditure

Baht
Unrecognized agreement 2022 2021
Building and Equipment - net 2,610,288.76 -

Total 2,610,288.76 -

ITD has commitment above arising from construction agreement, improvement and

asset procurement,

17. CAPITAL
As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the capital was at the amount of 35,070,700.00
baht comprising the assets transferred from the Office of Higher Education Commission (the expenses
for repairing, improving and refurbishing office building) at the amount of 3,472,180.00 baht. Another
amount of money transferred from the Office of Higher Education Commission were 6,527,820.00
baht. Moreover, ITD received additional central budget under the category of advance or necessary
payment at the amount of 25,070,700.00 baht.
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18. Revenue Over (Under) Accumulated Expenses
Revenue Over (Under) Accumulated Expenses consist of :
Baht

2022 2021
Revenue Over (Under) than expense beginning period  21,190,783.86 26,530,333.97
Improvement (93,545.00) -
Revenue under than expense for the period (184,336.18) (5,339,550.11)
Total Revenue Over (Under) Accumulated Expenses 20,912,902.68 21,190,783.86

Revenue adjustment transactions were revenue over(under) accumulated expenses
incurred in the accounting period for the year 2022. The accumulative accounting had been
corrected the errors for the last year amounted Baht 93,545.00. The institution had found the
expenses from the project in order to raise the integration levels in the region under the
development of Regional Technical Cooperation. Under the subsidy budget for the year 2019 that
had been closed, there was no submit documents to approve the reimbursement of such air ticket fee In
time for the fiscal year, Later on, Thai Airways International Public Company Limited sent an invoice No.
Gor 3-2/05/EA/1200000682 dated December 2, 2021, regarding the submission an invoice for the air
ticket fee amounted Baht 93,545.00. As a result, there was the discrepancies in the institution's
accounting information. The impact of such transactions causes the year 2019 to have a lower net
expense amounted Baht 93,545.00 baht. Therefore, the institution had adjusted the account by
debiting income over (under) accumulated expenses and crediting the checks payable Krungthai
BankPathumwan Branch No. 0086103067 dated September 30, 2022, check number 10318420,
amounted Baht 93,545.00

19. GOVERNMENT BUDGET APPROPRIATION
Government budget appropriation consist of :

Baht

2022 2021
Subsidies for personnel expenses 17,758,900.00 16,623,000.00
Subsidies for operation expenses 6,405,700.00 7,746,200.00
Subsidies for study and training expenses 1,350,000.00 1,939,200.00
Subsidiaries for meeting /seminar expenses 1,434,000.00 1,231,300.00
Subsidiaries for technical services expenses - 2,212,600.00

Subsidiaries for Investment 8,500,000.00 -
Total government budget appropriation 35,448,600.00 29,752,300.00
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20. REVENUE FROM SUBSIDY - GOVERNMENT AGENCY
Revenue from subsidy - government agency consisted of:
Baht
2022 2021
Revenue from subsidy - government agency (TSR) 4,391,376.87 2,123,356.94
Total revenue from subsidy - government agency ~ 4,391,376.87 2,123,356.94
21. REVENUE FROM SELLING GOODS AND SERVICE
Revenue from Selling Goods and Services consist of
Baht
2022 2021
Revenue from organizing activities 1,981,211.35 2,994,528.00
Revenue from financial support for organizing
activities 1,033,383.18 500,000.00
Total revenue from Selling Goods and
Services 3,014,594.53 3,494,528.00
22. OTHER INCOME
Other income consist of :
Baht
2022 2021
Revenue from interest deposit at financial
institutes 238,022.90 219,935.48
Revenue from interest of the spedial lottery of
the Government Savings Bank 30,400.00 93,200.00
Other income 57,428.92 31,488.54
Total other income 325,851.82 344.624.02
23. PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Personnel expenses
Baht
2022 2021
Salaries 21,283,799.25 20,129,836.00
Position allowance 135,000.00 -
Welfare expenses 1,260,437.62 1,051,031.72
Provident fund 1,155,683.78 1,077,757.10
Total Personnel expenses 23,834,920.65 22,258,624.82

Annual Report 2022 11 5
The International Institute for Trade and Development



R IRTLS

DHARMNITI

wnewai 24 Arduridatiung

Ay Useneume

o -
Uundla
Burawsensaiandig

Aty

d 1
URUIELVIRN 25 AMaULIY

AMBUWIY Usenaume

ANRDULNULRNIZITY
1 o
ANMRULYLEY

FINAPBUUNY

d L
uneuai 26 dnlddey

Aldaey Usenause

Fldaneineusy
AlieneEineuss - yamanieuan
ABIBLAUNY
AreuugnuazsingeEnm
Fufanast Ui omas
ANRLMHUINNT
AssTuLEY
Algdelunsuszgy
ALY
fasfnsiyarsnI s
ATIvAZARIUY
Asrndunus
Aldaandu

suAlFase

116 s1897uUs¢31U 2565
o ; 4 Y .
A0 TUTENINUTEINALINDNITATLAENITHRIUN

23
2565 2564
F 495,172.00
553,860.00 316,000.00
553,860.00 811,172.00
2565 2560
330,000.00 120,000.00
11,000.00 ;
341,000.00 120,000.00
2565 2564
167,130.00 104,603.00
3,424,102.93 3,164,104.41
223,843.00 172,611.00
252,585.70 129,799.50
44,144.46 24,700.00
2,109,645.09 3,304,949.41
9,271.80 7,079.60
46,633.02 35,872.00
335,520.00 307,620.00
92,839.30 24,892.59
5,398,550.15 4,851,327.25
2,070,476.01 1,124,580.04
2,376,523.87 2,065,867.96
16,551,265.33 15,718,006.76




SIILUA

DHARMNITI

23
24. REMUNERATION AND PENSION
Remuneration and Pension consist of :
Baht
2022 2021
Remuneration - 495,172.00
Compensation in case of contract termination 553,860.00 316,000.00
Total remuneration and Pension 553,860.00 811,172.00
25. COMPENSATION
Compensation of :
Baht
2022 2021
Compensation for specific work 330,000.00 120,000.00
Oher compensation 11,000.00 -
Total compensation 341,000.00 120,000.00
26. LIVING EXPENSES
Living Expenses consist of
Baht
2022 2021
Training expenses 167,130.00 104,603.00
Training expenses-outsiders 3,424,102.93 3,164,104.41
Traveling expenses 223,843.00 172,611.00
Repairing and maintenance expenses 252,585.70 129,799.50
Gas and petrol 44.144.46 24,700.00
Service contract 2,109,645.09 3,304,949.41
Fee 9,271.80 7,079.60
Expenses for organizing meetings 46,633.02 35,872.00
Rental fee 335,520.00 307,620.00
Durable articles of which their value were below
threshold 92,839.30 24,892.59
Expenses for research and development 5,398,550.15 4,851,327.25
Expenses for public relations 2,070,476.01 1,124,580.04
Other living expenses 2,376,523 87 2,465,867.96
Total Living Expenses 16,551,265.33 15,718,006.76

Annual Report 2022 1 1 7
The International Institute for Trade and Development



TITHUA

DHARMNITI

:i i ar
VULURNA 27 AIEN
ArYan Usznause

[

ATTen

e HIRPL

WA 28 AvdEsnsyulag
Aessyulaa Usznaudae

Alvn

AszUn

ALNIANN

AlUswild
TumassyUlng

wnewail 29 AndeusiauazArdasmiie
] ‘:J 1 ar o 2
AFaNMALazAdnT e Yszneundy

dnuFudssdiinauy

it

Funindludinu
ufdeusmuazidiasmte

waBLmg 30 Msdndszianienisiul

24
U
2565 2564
282,320.97 344,131.53
282,320.97 344,131.53
UM
2565 2564
249,125.00 360,985.00
8,869.00 5,491.00
2323361 24,230.88
37,809.00 36,767.00
319,036.61 427,473.88
UM
2565 2561
596,682.24 567,890.94
553,144.78 576,186.80
332,528.82 223,767.51
1,482,355.84 1,367,845.25

gan. ladauszianmenisinduesenisiunenumstudmivl 2564 Welaenrdnariunis

sanes1enTuTsunITRuIntdagiy Sifinansenudssunanimanissndusuniansiudiniuinie

- W&o, @ -
suuanensRsuLadunIndans/diumumudlaseanuly fl

UM
pufisenulidy daussaviml mufiseeulnl
SUKFASKANISANTLITUNIINTTINY
ﬁﬂw%'uﬂguqﬂi'uﬁ 30 fiugneuy 2564
s18lAnNMIMBAUAILEZUSNS 3,489,200.00 5,328.00 3,494,528.00
selddu 349,952.02 (5,328.00) 344,620.02

118 s1897uUs¢31U 2565
o ; 4 Y .
A0 TUTENINUTEINALINDNITATLAENITHRIUN



AgIuUa
DHARMNITI

24
27. MATERIALS COST
Materials Cost consist of :
Baht
2022 2021
Materials Cost 282,320.97 344,131.53
Total materials Cost 282,320.97 344,131.53
28. EXPENSES FOR PUBILC UTILITIES
Expenses for Public Utilities consist of :
Baht
2022 2021
Electricity 249,125.00 360,985.00
Irrigation 8,869.00 5,491.00
Telephone 23,233.61 24,230.88
Postage 37,809.00 36,767.00
Total Expenses for Public Utilities 319,036.61 427,473.88
29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization consisted of :
Baht
2022 2021
Office improvement 596,682.24 567,890.94
Durable articles 553,144.78 576,186.80
Intangible assets 332,528.82 223,767.51
Total depreciation and amortization 1,482,355.84 1,367,845.25

30. Reclassification of accounts
ITD has classified certain transactions in the financial report for 2021 to be consistent
with the presentation of the current period financial report which does not affect the statement of
financial performance for the year or statement of changes in net assets/equity as reported as

follows:
Baht
As previously Reclassification As newly
reported reported
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL OPERATIONS
For the year ended September 30, 2021
Revenue from trade and services 3,489,200.00 5,328.00 3,494,528.00
Other income 349,952.02 (5,328.00) 344,624.02
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